AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE CITY OF NEW BRITAIN

AND

LOCAL 1165, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES

COUNCIL 4, AFL-CIO

JULY 1, 2019 - JUNE 30, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	
ARTICLE I	UNION RECOGNITION
ARTICLE II	RIGHTS OF THE CITY
ARTICLE III	UNION SECURITY AND DUES
ARTICLE IV	SENIORITY
ARTICLE V	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME
ARTICLE VI	LEAVE PROVISIONS
ARTICLE VII	VACATIONS
ARTICLE VIII	DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE
ARTICLE IX	HOLIDAYS
ARTICLE X	WAGES
ARTICLE XI	INSURANCE AND PENSION
ARTICLE XII	SAFETY, HEALTH AND CLOTHING
ARTICLE XIII	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE XIV	UNION BUSINESS
ARTICLE XV	GENERAL PROVISIONS
ARTICLE XVI	DURATION AND RENEWAL
APPENDIX A	WAGES FOR THOSE HIRED PRIOR TO 5/1/15 48
APPENDIX	WAGES FOR THOSE HIRED AFTER 5/1/15 49
APPENDIX C	PILO Grandfathered List
APPENDIX D	INSURANCE
ADDENDUM A*	MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT	EXHIBIT A (PENSION ESCALATION) 80
ADDENDUM B	.SICK LEAVE POOL 82
CICNIATUDE DAGE	0.4

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of New Britain (hereinafter referred to as the "City"), and New Britain Police Union Local 1165, and Council 4, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO (hereinafter referred to as the "Union").

It is the intention of the parties in entering into this Agreement to maintain a harmonious relationship between them recognizing the legitimate needs of the employees covered as well as the obligations of the City to the public.

The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees covered without regard to race, creed, color, sex, national origin, age, marital status, physical disability, or political belief.

ARTICLE I UNION RECOGNITION

1.0

The City recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purposes of collective bargaining pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Municipal Employees Relations Act with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and conditions of employment for all uniformed and investigatory employees of the Police Department, excluding the Chief of Police and Deputy Chief of Police.

ARTICLE II RIGHTS OF THE CITY

2.0

Unless expressly limited or relinquished below by a specific section of this Agreement, the rights, powers, and authority held by the City and any of its Departments, Agencies, or Boards pursuant to the Charter, general or special statute, ordinance, regulation or other lawful provision, over matters involving the municipality, and complete operational control over the policies, practices, procedures and regulations with respect to its employees, shall remain solely and exclusively in the City of New Britain.

2.1

In the event funding becomes available, the Chief shall have the right to civilianize the functions of the property clerk. Implementation of this provision will not result in any layoff or elimination of sworn personnel. The City will provide sixty (60) days' notice to the Union in the event it decides to exercise its prerogative to implement this provision. If and when the property clerk functions are civilianized, the special services bureau will continue to handle narcotics.

In the event funding becomes available, the Chief shall have the right to civilianize the functions of the jailer. Implementation of this provision will not result in any layoff or elimination of sworn personnel. The City will provide sixty (60) days' notice to the Union in the event it decides to exercise its prerogative to implement this provision. This provision shall be limited to those functions of the jailer, which involve the monitoring of prisoners.

2.3

In the event funding becomes available, the Chief shall have the right to civilianize the functions of the Dog Warden. Implementation of this provision will not result in any layoff or elimination of sworn personnel. The City will provide sixty (60) days' notice to the Union in the event it decides to exercise its prerogative to implement this provision.

ARTICLE III UNION SECURITY AND DUES

3.0

Upon receipt of an employee's signed authorization to deduct membership dues or voluntary agency fees, the Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of the employee an amount as established and periodically adjusted by the union. Such deductions shall continue unless the employer is notified in writing by Council 4 that the employee is no longer a member.

3.1

Dues or service fee remittances, as specified by the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union, shall be remitted to the Financial Officer of the Union weekly.

3.2

The Union agrees to indemnify and save the City harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the City for the purpose of complying with the dues deduction provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE IV SENIORITY

4.0

Seniority shall be defined as the length of an employee's continuous service from the date of their most recent employment as a regular police officer with the City of New Britain unless broken by any of the reasons set forth in Section 4.7 below. Rank seniority shall be defined as the length of an employee's continuous service from the date of his/her most recent appointment in his/her current rank, unless broken by any of the reasons set forth in Section 4.7 below, however, any certified officer hired as a lateral transfer prior to the graduation from the police academy of any new recruits, shall have rank seniority in the rank of patrol officer over those

new recruits regardless of the date of hire of the new recruits. In the event that two or more employees were appointed on the same date, their seniority standing shall be determined by order of appointment from the certified list. A union member may drop rank without losing seniority.

4.1

The City will maintain a seniority list for the Department, which shall be revised as of January 1st of each year and furnished to the Union with a copy posted on the Department bulletin boards. Any claims for corrections must be made through the grievance procedure provisions of this Agreement within fifteen (15) days after a copy is given to the Union, otherwise the list shall be deemed correct.

4.2

Entry Level Employees shall be on probation and shall not attain seniority under this Agreement until one year after they have successfully attained their POST-C Certification as a police officer. During such period, the employee shall be on probation and may be discharged by the City without recourse to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement by either the Union or the employee. However, before any formal recommendation of dismissal is made, it shall be discussed with the employee, with Union representation if he/she so desires. Upon one year after attainment of the POST-C police officer certification, the employee's seniority shall date back to the time of employment as provided in Section 4.0 above.

Certified or Lateral transfer officers shall be on probation and shall not attain seniority for three months from their date of hire with the exception of certified officers/ lateral transfers who are required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training. A certified officer/lateral transfer who is required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training shall be on probation until three months after the successful completion of his/her FTO training. During such period, the employee shall be on probation and may be discharged by the City without recourse to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement by either the Union or the employee. However, before any formal recommendation of dismissal is made, it shall be discussed with the employee, with Union representation if he/she so desires. Upon three months from the date of hire, the employee's seniority shall date back to the time of employment as provided in Section 4.0 above.

4.3

All regular members and officers of the department shall be assigned to either one of the following shifts in accordance with their preference by rank seniority, provided that the efficiency of the department is not impaired.

First Shift 7:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M. 7:30 A.M. to 3:30 P.M.

Second Shift 3:00 P.M. to 11:00 P.M. 3:30 P.M. to 11:30 P.M.

Third Shift 11:00 P.M. to 7:00 A.M.

11:30 P.M. to 7:30 A.M.

Fourth Shift 6:00 P.M. to 2:00 A.M.

Fifth Shift 10:00A.M. to 6:00 P.M.

Employees shall be given an opportunity to bid for shift assignments every four months, prior to December 1 and April 1, and August 1, and new shift assignments shall become effective with the first day of payroll week beginning on or after January 1 and May 1 and September 1 each year.

4.4

- Special Assignments may be made by the Chief of Police to Special units provided, Α however, that no more than three (3) members with less than three (3) years of police experience including one (1) year of experience in New Britain shall at any given time be so assigned, unless all senior employees have refused the assignment, and that assignment of such junior personnel shall not be for a period longer than twelve (12) months; however, the number of such junior personnel and the duration of such assignment may be extended in specific instances by mutual written agreement of the Chief and the Union. If an officer is not selected for a special assignment, the city shall verbally provide the reasons for non-selection for purposes of improvement at a meeting Exclusive of sick/injured unit, an employee may with the Chief or his/her designee. request to leave a special assignment by letter to the Chief of Police. The Chief shall arrange such removal within thirty (30) days of the request of the employee. necessary, the thirty (30) day requirement may be extended for an additional sixty (60) days in 30 (thirty day) increments, if the Chief of Police deems it to be in the best interests of the Police Department. Any additional time beyond the aforementioned shall be by mutual agreement between the Chief of Police and the Union.
- B. An officer who has received specialized training while assigned to a special unit may be called upon, during regular working hours or while off-duty, to investigate cases related to the specialized training. Officers may be temporarily re-assigned to the specialized unit for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days to assist in such investigation. In any event, officers so assigned shall be provided sufficient time and opportunity to follow-up on investigations and complete all necessary paperwork.

4.5

The following Union representatives who are employees shall have top seniority during their terms of office to be applied on a departmental basis to all cases of a decrease in a working force: President, Vice President, Secretary-Treasurer, Recording Secretary, five (5) members of the Executive Board, and five (5) stewards.

In the event of a reduction in the work force, layoff shall be in the inverse order of hiring and any recall to work shall be by seniority.

4.7

An employee's seniority rights under this Agreement may be permanently broken for any of the following reasons:

- (1) Voluntary quit.
- (2) Discharge for just cause.
- (3) If he/she is absent from his/her job for three (3) consecutive working days without notifying his/her Department.
- (4) Failure to return to work upon the expiration of a leave of absence without permission of the Chief.
- (5) Working while on compensable sick leave.
- (6) Gives false reasons for obtaining a leave of absence.
- (7) Falsifies a statement or intentionally omits information on employment application.

4.8

Supernumeraries may be called in to work as needed by the Chief of Police but only after the procedures in Section 5. 1 (a) and 5. 1 (b) have been followed.

ARTICLE V HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- A. The work week and workday in effect immediately prior to the effective date of this Agreement shall remain the basic work week and work day in effect during the term of this Agreement except as provided in (b) below. The existing cycle of days off for each rank and division shall not be changed involuntarily during the terms of this agreement.
- B. There will be a working shift of four days on, two days off for an approximate, average work shift of 37.33 hours weekly for employees in the Patrol Division. Such work shift will exist under the following requirements:
 - 1. During each quarter of the fiscal year, the Police Department can assign an employee to an eight-hour work shift for purposes of training during any workweek in which an employee is scheduled to work thirty-two (32) hours. The eight-hour training shift plus the four eight-hour work shifts constitute a regular workweek. As such, no overtime payment is due. The eight-hour shift for training will normally be scheduled during the first shift with the exception of specialized training as determined by the Police Department.

In addition, each eight-hour training shift may be scheduled by the Police Department without regard to the employee's regular working shift and is not subject to any overtime payment.

If any administrative body and/or court decides that additional compensation is due as a result of the inclusion of the training component into the basic work week, the City has the right to reopen negotiations on the 4-2 work week within thirty (30) days of such decision.

- 2. If the average sick leave usage for all employees on the 4-2 work week exceeds seven (7) days per employee for any fiscal year ending June 30, the City has the right to reopen negotiations on the 4-2 work week. Any notice to do so must be forwarded to the Union no later than September 1. Negotiations shall commence with thirty (30) days of such notice to the Union.
- C. In lieu of the 4-2 work shift, employees who are on special assignments, employees in the Detective Division and any employee not covered under the 4-2 work week will be given one and one-quarter (1 & 1/4) personal days off for every two months of employment so long as they remain in their present assignment and only for the duration of the 4-2 work week for Patrol personnel. Captain and Lieutenants working a 5-2, 5-2, 4-3 schedule are not entitled to personal days under this section. No employee shall accrue the one and one-quarter personal days for any period in which he or she is on leave without pay or suspension. With respect to an employee on extended sick leave, said employee shall receive their one and one-quarter personal days upon their return to work. With respect to employees on extended military leave, employees shall not accrue the one and one-quarter personal days for any period in which they are on unpaid military leave. Those employees who are deployed to another country in a time of war shall be entitled to the one and one-quarter personal days for the year in which they return to work.
- D. The Detective workweek will be Monday through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. and 4:00 P.M. to Midnight. All detectives in CID shall be on a rotating call-in list for weekends. When on call, a detective is required to monitor their phone and be suitable for call-in. A detective who was on call shall be entitled to select a day in the subsequent workweek to be off. The Special Services Unit will be assigned to work varying shifts depending on the needs of the department and the City. Effective July 1, 2020, if a detective is called back to work during the hours of 12 am to 8 am, he/she shall receive the 3rd shift differential set forth in Section 10.2, which is 6%, for all hours worked.
- E. Captains and Lieutenants shall work a 5-2, 5-2, 4-3 schedule. It is the right of the City and the Chief to stagger the work weeks of Captains and Lieutenants to insure that their 4-3 work week does not happen at the same time. Captains and Lieutenants will submit their request for their 4-3 regular day off which must be approved by the Chief.
- F. Employees shall be allowed to swap within rank and provided the swaps do not result in the City being required to pay additional overtime. Such swaps shall be approved by the Chief or his designee.

- A. Overtime constitutes any time worked for the Police Department over and above the regular workweek. As stated in Section 5.0(c)(1), the eight-hour work shift for purposes of training is considered part of the regular workweek. Special Duty assignments constitute any work performed for and paid for by any other department within the City or by any person or corporation other than the City. Regular employees within the Department shall be given preference on all overtime and special duty assignments provided that, in the case of overtime, the Chief or his designee shall have the sole responsibility to decide whether overtime, on any basis, is to be worked.
- В. Overtime assignments and special duty assignments shall be allocated by means of separate card file system. Each system shall consist of cards bearing the name of employees who have indicated their desire for such work. Overtime assignments shall be offered by shift and division preference, and special duty assignments shall be offered by The cards of employees accepting such assignments, or rejecting such assignments without a reasonable excuse, shall be placed at the rear of the file. New employees who indicate their desire for overtime or special duty assignments, or other employees who have withdrawn from consideration but wish to be reinstated, shall have their cards placed at the rear of the file. If an employee believes he or she was erroneously passed over for an overtime assignment, the employee shall notify the Deputy Chief of Police who shall investigate the employee's claim. The Deputy Chief shall respond to the employee's claim within three working days. If it is determined by the Deputy that the employee was passed over, the employee will be given the option to work an overtime assignment over the next seven days on his or her work shift from the date of notification by the Deputy Chief of Police. In lieu of working an overtime assignment, the employee may opt to take the loss of overtime hours at time and one-half (1 ½) as personal leave. Any dispute of the decision of the Deputy Chief is grievable under Article XIII.

Special duty shall be distributed no later than 10 a.m. on the day of the duty assignment.

Distracted Driver overtime as well as all other grant funded overtime in the Police Department with the exception of PAL overtime only, shall be offered on a rotating basis to members who have indicated a desire to work the relevant overtime.

- C. The Chief and the Union shall agree upon two (2) members of the Union who shall have the responsibility of handling the scheduling of special duty and overtime assignments. If the Union's concurrence is withdrawn, such appointment shall be changed by the Chief. No overtime or special duty assignments shall be made without the approval of the Chief or his designee. The Chief may assign specific officers to particular special duty assignments in his sole discretion when in his opinion such assignments are in the best interest of the Department.
- D. In an emergency the Chief may call to work or hold over any employee known to be available. An employee receiving a call to report to work for overtime under any emergency circumstances shall report to work unless sick or injured. Whenever possible, the Union shall be given advance notice of the emergency situation to assure equitable

distribution of emergency calls. Any time an officer is involuntary held over for the filling of vacancies due to administrative errors, sickness, last minute time off, non-emergency hold-overs, that officer shall be given the rate of two (2) times the applicable hourly rate.

Any time an officer is held over for staffing or safety issues as set forth in the CBA and pursuant to Section 7.1(f) of the Recall to Duty Policy of the Department Rules, shall be paid time and one half as set forth in the collective bargaining agreement.

- E. The Union shall have the right, upon reasonable advance notice, to review the special duty and overtime hours and hourly and salary rates for each employee covered by this Agreement for the purposes of investigating possible grievances which may be filed under the provisions of this Agreement.
- F. The following ratio shall be followed on special duty assignments:

When a special duty assignment requires the hiring of between 4 and 7 officers, 1 Sergeant shall be hired;

When a special duty assignment requires the hiring of 2 or more Sergeants, 1 Lieutenant shall be hired;

When a special duty assignment requires the hiring of 2 or more Lieutenants, 1 Captain shall be hired;

In the event that all Sergeants have been offered the assignment but the position could not be filled, a Lieutenant can be substituted;

In the event that all Lieutenants have been offered the assignment but the position could not be filled, a Captain can be substituted.

When an outside vendor is required to hire a supervisor pursuant to the above ratio, that vendor shall pay the supervisor's or supervisors' rate(s) of pay.

5.2

Compensation for special duty assignments for police duty shall be as follows:

For all special duty assignments in which employees are hired by the City of New Britain and/or the New Britain Board of Education, one and one-half (1 & ½) times the hourly rate applicable to the 1st shift police officer classification.

SROs shall be given first preference for any New Britain High School sporting event, dinner, dance, prom or graduation event. Lunch duty shall not be considered a school event for the purpose of this article.

For all special duty assignments in which employees are hired by a private contractor who is working for the City of New Britain and/or the New Britain Board of Education, one and one-

half $(1 & \frac{1}{2})$ times the hourly rate applicable to the 1^{st} shift detective classification which hourly rate shall be determined by taking the weekly rate of pay for such position divided by 37.33 hours.

For all other special duty assignments, one and one-half $(1 \& \frac{1}{2})$ times the hourly rate applicable to the 1^{st} shift sergeant classification.

Compensation shall be in accordance with the following schedule:

Up to four (4) hours.......Minimum four (4) hours pay at Special Duty Rate.

Four (4) hours through eight (8) hours......Minimum eight (8) hours pay at Special Duty Rate.

All hours after eight (8) or fraction thereof per hours...... Special Duty Rate for amount of time worked.

- A. Except as specified below, compensation for overtime assignments shall be at the employee's regular, straight-time hourly rate. Although the approximate, average regular work week of 37.33 hours for Patrol Division employees has been increased by the inclusion of the four annual work shifts for the purposes of training, the City agrees that for overtime and special duty assignments, the rate will be computed based on a 37.33 work week. Employees shall be compensated for overtime assignments at one and one-half times their regular hourly rate for any hours worked over and above their regularly scheduled work week. For the purposes of this paragraph only, the term "hours worked" includes any hours for which an employee receives compensation, except special duty assignments, but does not include hours for which the employee is on sick leave, with or without compensation.
- B. Regular employees recalled for overtime assignments after the completion of their regularly scheduled shift, and when such recall time is unconnected to the time of when their regular shift commences, shall receive a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the rate of time and one half (1 & ½).
- C. Employees may request half days and quarter days off at either the start of or end of their shifts. These requests shall be granted by the officer in charge of the shift at the time of the request so long as the efficiency of the department is not impaired. Seniority shall determine which officer may be granted time off, if more than one request for time off is made.
- D. Members may choose to accumulate compensatory time in lieu of payment of overtime at a rate of 1 & ½ times for hours worked for overtime which is part of the members' regular work (excludes special duty overtime). For any overtime which is incidental to a member's regular work, it will be the City's choice as to whether compensatory time will be allowed in lieu of overtime payment. Some examples of overtime which would be incidental to a member's regular work are instruction/teaching, recruiting, PAL, and explorers. For any city sponsored event, the member can choose compensatory time in lieu of payment of overtime. No member may accumulate more than 80 hours of

compensatory time at any time. Use of compensatory time leave shall be in accordance with the provisions set forth in Article 9.3.

5.4

Any time earned pursuant to Sections 5.0d, & 6.3a shall not be accrued but must be taken within 1 year of the date earned unless written permission is granted by the Chief of Police and Personnel Director. The City will provide quarterly reports of any earned time. The City of New Britain reserves the right upon verification of amount to pay out said amount over a three to five year period of time upon retirement based upon the City's financial status.

ARTICLE VI LEAVE PROVISIONS

6.0

Each employee hired prior to April 1, 2000 shall receive leave with full pay for illness or A. incapacity at the rate of one and one-quarter (1& 1/4) working days per month, cumulative. No employee shall accrue the one and one-quarter sick days for any period in which he or she is on leave without pay or suspension. With respect to an employee on extended sick leave, said employee shall receive their one and one-quarter sick days upon their return to work. With respect to employees on extended military leave, employees shall not accrue the one and one-quarter sick days for any period in which they are on unpaid military leave. Those employees who are deployed to another country in a time of war shall be entitled to the one and one-quarter sick days for the year in which they return to work. Upon written request, each employee shall be notified of accumulated sick leave by letter during the month of January each year. At the time of an employee's death or retirement, he/she or the beneficiary (in the case of the employee's death) shall receive compensation for his/her unused sick days up to a maximum of 250 days at his/her then current daily rate of pay in accordance with the following formula:

20% of the first seventy-five (75) days

35% of the next one hundred seventy-five (175) days

Employees hired on or after April 1, 2000 shall receive one (1) day per month for sick leave up to a maximum of twelve (12) days per year. No employee shall accrue the one sick day for any period in which he or she is on leave without pay or suspension. With respect to an employee on extended sick leave, said employee shall receive their one sick day upon their return to work. With respect to employees on extended military leave, employees shall not accrue the one sick day for any period in which they are on unpaid military leave. Those employees who are deployed to another country in a time of war shall be entitled to the one sick day for the year in which they return to work. For employees hired on or after April 1, 2000 and prior to May 13, 2020 for purposes of payment of unused sick days at retirement or death, payout shall be in accordance with the above formula up to a maximum of 150 days. Employees hired after May 13, 2020 shall not receive payment of unused sick days at retirement or death.

The City of New Britain reserves the right upon verification of amount to pay out said amount over a three to five year period of time upon retirement based upon the City's financial status.

B. Employees who have exhausted their sick leave may request additional sick leave in accordance with the terms of the Sick Leave Pool which is attached hereto as Addendum B.

6.1

The Police Department's medical certificate shall be required for any illness or injury of the employee's workweek or longer. The certificate may be required for sickness or injury of shorter duration only if the employee has had more than five (5) separate absences (regardless of duration) due to sickness or injury in a calendar year.

6.2

Maternity leave shall be granted to any pregnant employee physically unable to perform her duties, or any alternative duty which may be made available by the Department. Such leave shall begin at a time determined by the employee's personal physician, and shall continue until the employee is physically capable of returning to work, normally not later than eight weeks after delivery. Such leave shall be with pay to the extent of the employee's accumulated sick leave. In addition, the employee has the option of using any other accumulated time at their discretion.

6.3

- A. Each full-time employee shall be entitled to three-quarters (3/4) earned day for each thirty-four (34) consecutive working days of perfect attendance (only sick days and any unpaid leave days shall break consecutive perfect attendance).
- B. Employees while out on sick leave shall not leave their residence at any time during the respective shift for which the sick time was used except for medical or emergency reasons, unless notification and reason is given to the Shift Commander or in his absence, the senior officer in charge. This provision shall only apply in cases of illness, and not injury, regardless of whether such injury occurs on or off the job.

6.4

In the event an employee is absent from work because of an illness or incapacity entitling him/her to periodic benefits under the Workers' Compensation Act, such absence shall not be charged against sick leave if said employee has filed a workers' compensation claim which has been accepted and there is medical documentation stating that the employee was totally disabled from work. Such absence will be charged to sick during the period in which the employee's workers' compensation claim is under consideration. If the Worker's Compensation claim is approved and the time lost from work is 3 days or less and the employee is not entitled to temporary total benefits under the Workers' Compensation Act, the employee's sick time will be restored. If the Worker's Compensation claim is denied by PMA, then sick time will remain

charged for any time lost from work. If Employee has a return to work note and fails to return to work, then he/she will be charged his/her own accrued time.

The City shall pay the employee the difference between the workers' compensation benefits and his/her regular rate of pay, provided the City may require a certificate of continued disability from a mutually agreeable physician familiar with the type of injury in question as a condition of receiving such supplementary payments more than three (3) months after the date of the injury, and provided further, such supplementary payments shall end one (1) year after the date of injury. For injuries that arise specifically from the performance of an essential function of an officer's position as defined by the job description, such supplementary payments shall end two (2) years after the date of injury.

In addition to its existing statutory rights of recovery for workers' compensation benefits paid by the City to its employee from any verdict, judgment or settlement resulting in the payment of a sum of money by a third party, if the employees' verdict, judgment or settlement includes wage recovery, the City shall also be entitled to reimbursement of any supplemental payments that it has made to its employee out of the proceeds of said verdict, judgment or settlement. The rights of recovery by the City shall take precedence over the rights of recovery by the employee. Any reimbursement under this article will only be made from monies awarded for wage recovery.

6.5

In the event of death in the employee's immediate family or the immediate family of his or her spouse, the employee shall be granted a minimum of three (3) days and may request up to five (5) successive regular work days absence without loss of pay to attend the funeral. Three (3) of the five (5) working days are not to be deducted from the employee's sick leave account.

Immediate family for the purposes of this clause is defined as parents, grandparents, spouse, brother, sister, child, grandchild, step-parents, step-children and also any relation who is domiciled in the employee's household. Proof of death may be required.

Other individuals domiciled in the employee's household, or their immediate family member, will be considered on a case-by-case basis and will not have recourse to the grievance and/or arbitration procedure. Proof of death may be required by the Personnel Director.

The maximum days for a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt or uncle shall be two (2) days.

6.6

When a serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family occurs and personal attendance is required for care of the immediate family, up to five (5) consecutive days off per fiscal year, with duty days in such period chargeable to sick leave, shall be granted; provided, however, that the employee shall furnish a medical certificate. The Chief may, upon application and the showing of extenuating circumstances, extend the leave, which will be charged to sick leave.

Any permanent full-time employee in the classified service who is a member of the National Guard or Naval Military or the Military or Naval Forces of the United States who is required to undergo field training therein, shall be entitled to leave of absence with full pay for the period of such field training not to exceed fifteen working days per fiscal year. The said leave of absence shall be in addition to the annual vacation leave and the amount of compensation paid to the employee for such leave of absence. A statement from military authorities evidencing attendance shall be required by the City.

6.8

Under no condition shall an employee who is receiving sick leave pay or Worker's Compensation accept a job other than the job he/she presently has with the City.

ARTICLE VII VACATIONS

- A. The vacation period shall be July 1st through June 30th in each year, except that no vacations shall be granted on December 24, 25, 31 and January 1st for each year without approval of the Chief.
- B. For each employee hired after April 22, 2015, it is agreed that after six (6) months but less than one (1) year of continuous service, each such employee shall accrue .41666 days of vacation with pay per month from his/her date of hire which may be used after the initial six (6) continuous months of service and before the first anniversary date
- C. An employee who shall have completed one (1) year but less than five (5) years of continuous service during the vacation year shall be entitled to two (2) weeks of vacation during the vacation year, with pay. Certified officers/lateral transfers hired with 28 months or more of service as a certified police officer prior to being hired by the City of New Britain, will be placed at the 1-5 years step for vacation prospectively in accordance with the December 18, 2012 Memorandum of Understanding signed by the City and Union with the exception of certified officers/lateral transfers who are required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training. Certified Officers/lateral transfers who are required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training shall earn vacation time as an entry level police officer. Once that certified officer/lateral transfer completes FTO, he/she shall be placed at the 1/5 years step for vacation time with the understanding that shall be given the difference of the total amount of accrued vacation days in his/her bank at that time and 10 days.
- D. An employee who shall have completed five (5) years but less than ten (10) years of continuous service during the vacation year shall be entitled to three (3) weeks of vacation during the vacation year, with pay.
- E. An employee who shall have completed ten (10) or more years of continuous service during the vacation year shall be entitled to three (3) weeks vacation during the vacation

year, with pay, plus one day for each additional year of continuous service beyond nine years up to a maximum of five (5) additional days, so that an employee who shall have completed fourteen (14) or more years of such service shall be entitled to four (4) weeks of such vacation during the vacation year, with pay.

- F. An employee who shall have completed twenty (20) or more years of continuous service during the vacation year shall be entitled to four (4) weeks vacation during the vacation year, with pay, plus one day for each additional year of continuous service beyond twenty years up to a maximum of five (5) additional days, so that an employee who shall have completed twenty-five (25) or more years of such service shall be entitled to five (5) weeks of such vacation during the vacation year, with pay.
- G. No employee shall accrue vacation time for any period in which he or she is on leave without pay or suspension. With respect to employees on extended military leave, employees shall not accrue vacation time for any period in which they are on unpaid military leave. Those employees who are deployed to another country in a time of war shall be entitled to the vacation time for the year in which they return to work.

7.1

Vacation time for the period July 1st through August 30th shall be selected prior to May 1st of each year, and members will be notified by May 15th. Where there is a conflict between employees, rank seniority shall be given preference, provided any changes because of seniority or individual shifting shall be completed by July 1st. If no selection is made by an employee by July 1st, the Chief may grant vacation time as the efficiency of the Department requires.

After August 30th, any vacations for the remainder of the vacation period shall be given on the basis of seniority with a minimum of fifteen (15) days prior notice.

It is agreed that vacation time or any duration have priority status over all other leave. Anyone who has previously been approved for vacation time cannot be bumped. If a holiday occurs during a week when an employee is off on vacation, the employee shall be required to take a holiday for that day but will not be bumped.

7.2

Any accrued pro-rata vacation due an employee at the time he/she voluntarily terminates his/her service shall be paid provided the employee has given at least two (2) weeks' notice to the City. The notice provision may be waived by the City.

In the event of death of an employee, any accrued pro-rata vacation pay shall be paid to the beneficiary designated on his/her City insurance policy.

7.3

Employees shall be allowed to carry over a maximum of five vacation days into the subsequent vacation year.

Effective Fiscal Year 7/1/20-6/30/21 Employees will be allowed to cash out 5 days of compensatory time or vacation time on an annual basis. The cash out will occur in June each year commencing in June, 2021. Employees will be required make a request in writing to Police Administration no later June 1st to cash out the 5 days and identify whether they are cashing out vacation days or compensatory time and the payout will be made in the last pay date in June.

ARTICLE VIII DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

8.0

No employee shall be discharged, terminated, demoted, suspended or disciplined in any other manner except for just cause. As used herein, the term "demoted" shall not include the reassignment of any employee working in an "acting" assignment, resulting in a reduction of the employee's rate of pay.

8.1

All disciplinary action must be based upon a finding of just cause. Following an initial, informal meeting with the employee and union representative, if requested, the Chief may impose discipline up to and including discharge.

In the event the Chief of Police or his designee decides that disciplinary action in excess of thirty (30) days suspension is justified, the Chief or his designee shall first notify the employee and the Union President of the disciplinary action. The employee, a Union Representative and the Chief of Police or his designee shall meet within five (5) working days of such notice and attempt to resolve the issue. If resolution is reached, the settlement shall be reduced to writing by the Chief of Police or his designee within five (5) working days of the meeting and signed by the employee, the Union, the Personnel Director and the Chief of Police or his designee. Such settlement is final and binding on all parties. If agreement is not reached the Chief or his designee shall issue the disciplinary action.

8.2

Employees shall be entitled to Union representation upon request at any interview, investigation or hearing which may result in disciplinary action.

8.3

Only the Chief of Police shall have the authority to discharge, terminate, demote, suspend or discipline an employee in any other manner. No employee shall be discharged, terminated, demoted, suspended or disciplined in any other manner by the Chief of Police except for just cause, and only after being offered the opportunity for a hearing. An employee who has the possibility of disciplinary action of a suspension or greater will have a minimum of one (1) week notice prior to the hearing. The employee shall be entitled to legal representation if he/she chooses to attend such hearing.

Other than in the case of probationary employees, any disciplinary action, including discharge, may be appealed only through the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement, commencing at Step 2, or through the courts. A disciplinary action or discharge may not be appealed to the Civil Service Commission or the Board of Police Commissioners.

8.5

Any disciplinary action other than verbal reprimand shall be stated in writing, giving the reason for same, and a copy given to the employee and the Union steward at the time of such action. No warning may be used against an employee more than one (1) year after it is issued provided that no other disciplinary action has been issued during that year. Regardless of the above, no warning may be used against an employee more than two years after it is issued.

8.6

Any employee who is discharged or terminated shall be entitled to continued participation in the group insurance program as outlined in Article XI of this bargaining agreement, at his/her own expense but at group rates, until a decision is rendered by the Board of Mediation and Arbitration. If as a result of such decision the employee is reinstated with back pay, the employee shall also be reimbursed for his/her group insurance expenses.

8.7

In the case of a termination from employment, the Union or the City, at either party's option may demand arbitration before the American Arbitration Association or other comparable Alternate Dispute Resolution (ADR) provider if the American Arbitration Association ceases to handle such claims, in lieu of any rights to proceed to arbitration before the State of Connecticut Board of Mediation and Arbitration. In such an event, the City and the Union shall share equally the cost of such arbitration, exclusive of attorneys' fees.

ARTICLE IX HOLIDAYS

9.0

The recognized paid holidays shall be as follows: One floating holiday, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and any holiday officially proclaimed as such by the Congress of the United States or the Legislature of the State of Connecticut. Any employee hired after April 22, 2015, shall be entitled to the following 12 holidays, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Lincoln's Birthday, Washington's Birthday, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and any holiday officially proclaimed as such by the Congress of the United States or the Legislature of the State of Connecticut

Effective July 1, 2020, any employee using their accrued time on a regular scheduled holiday

shall have the appropriate time drawn from their holiday bank.

No employee shall accrue holidays which are celebrated while he or she is on leave without pay or suspension. With respect to employees on extended military leave, employees shall not accrue holidays for any period in which they are on unpaid military leave. Those employees who are deployed to another country in a time of war shall be entitled to the holidays for the year in which they return to work.

9.1

If a holiday occurs while an employee is out on sick leave, such holiday shall be charged against the employee's sick leave account. However, the employee shall be entitled to a day off, on a date subject to a time mutually agreeable to the department head and the employee. Employees who are off duty on any of the approved holidays by reason of vacation, regular days off or other approved leave with pay shall receive a compensation day off.

9.2

No holiday pay shall be paid an employee who is under suspension.

9.3

Employee's choice provided, however, a prior notice of two (2) consecutive days is given to the Chief or the Chief's designee, who may waive the notice requirement. The Chief shall determine the number of employees who may be off at any time under this Section, provided the efficiency of the department is not impaired. Seniority within rank and assignment shall be followed with regard to granting such time off. Any unused holidays in excess of four (4) as of April 2 each year may be assigned by the Department prior to June 1 for the remaining period of the fiscal year. An employee shall be paid, upon request, for holidays not used or assigned prior to June 30. Such payment shall be made prior to June 30. Any employees who are hired after ratification by Union Membership and approval by the Common Council, which date is established as April 22, 2015, shall be entitled to use or cash out 7 holidays and the remaining 5 shall be on a use it by June 30th or lose it basis.

9.4

Upon the retirement, death, resignation or termination of an employee for any reason, any holidays which have passed but not yet been taken by said employee shall be paid within thirty (30) days of such retirement, death, resignation or termination for any reason.

ARTICLE X WAGES

10.0

A. Salary schedules with effective dates shall be listed in Appendix A and Appendix B attached to this Agreement. Police Trainees shall be paid at the trainee rate for their

length of time in the Academy. Certified officers/lateral transfers hired with 30 months or more of service as a certified police officer prior to being hired by the City of New Britain who are not required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training, will be placed at the step of Patrol Officer on the salary schedule prospectively based upon their prior months of services as a certified police officer. Certified Officers/Lateral transfers who are required to attend the academy and undergo FTO training shall be hired at the salary of a Police Trainee as set forth in Appendix B of the CBA. Once the lateral transfer completes FTO, he/she shall be placed at the Patrol Officer-2nd Step (30 months) pay range.

Effective July 1, 2019, there shall be no general wage increase for all union members at all steps.

Effective July 1, 2020, there shall be a 2% general wage increase for all union members at all steps.

Effective July 1, 2021, there shall be a 2.25% general wage increase for all members at all steps.

Effective July 1, 2022, there shall be a 2.25% general wage increase for all members at all steps.

In addition to the wage increases set forth above, there shall be a 5% differential in wages between ranks. This differential shall be computed based on the highest paid employee of the lower rank to the lowest paid employee of the higher rank.

B. All employees shall utilize direct deposit for their paychecks

10.1

An employee temporarily assigned to work in a higher classification shall receive an adjusted rate while working in the higher class. No employee shall be considered as working in an acting capacity unless specifically assigned by the Chief or Chief's designee, or unless such assignment shall exceed a period greater than three (3) days. The adjusted rate shall be the rate in the temporary classification.

10.2

Employees working on the third shift in accordance with Section 4.3 shall be paid a work bonus of 6% on total earnings for all hours worked. Employees working on the fourth shift in accordance with Section 4.3 shall be paid a night work bonus of 5% on total earnings for all hours worked. Those employees working on the second shift in accordance with Section 4.3 shall be paid a work bonus of 4% on total earnings for all hours worked. The above shift bonuses will be figured on a weekly basis and shall be applied to hours worked during the noted shifts only.

For each employee covered by this Agreement and hired prior to May 13, 2020 with a minimum of ten (10) years of continuous service, the following amounts shall be added to such employee's annual salary for years of service completed prior to July 1st of each year.

For ten (10) through fourteen (14) years	\$400.00
For fifteen (15) through nineteen (19) years	\$475.00
For over twenty (20) years	\$575.00

Such payments shall be made during the second payroll week in July of each year. Employees hired after May 13, 2020 shall not be entitled to the payments set forth in this section.

10.4

All employees in pay grades included in the bargaining unit shall receive additional compensation annually for educational attainment of associate, bachelor's and/or master's degrees from an accredited college or university.

The following amounts shall be added to the employee's pay during the second payroll week in July of each year upon proof of attainment of:

Associate Degree	\$450.00 Total
Bachelor's Degree	\$650.00 Total
Master's Degree	\$750.00 Total

Those who have obtained the semester equivalency of an associate, bachelor's, or master's degree, prior to July 1, 1978, shall continue to receive the same additional amounts accorded those who have received a degree.

10.5

All employees receiving compensation in accordance with Section 10.4 shall submit copies of their degrees and/or semester equivalency of an associates, bachelors or masters degree to the Personnel Director for permanent record in the employee's personnel file.

10.6

Members assigned to the Canine Corps, who are entrusted with a dog, will be given one hour during the shift to care for the dog. This care shall include, but not limited to, exercising and feeding the dog. The hour allowed will be during the regular eight-hour tour of the officer and dog. In the event the officer and dog do not take the hour afforded due to work, the officer shall be compensated for one hour of pay at his regular straight timed hourly rate. Should the need arise for the use of the dog when the canine team is not scheduled to work, the department canine team shall be called in on an overtime basis before any outside agency canine team is called under the Mutual Aid Compact. The Department shall continue to cover the cost of feeding and medical care of the dog, so long as the dog is on active duty.

An officer who speaks and reads and who can interpret a foreign language into English and English into the foreign language, as performed during an interview or investigations, shall be paid \$450.00 per year to perform that duty as required in the field or upon the request of a supervisor. As proof that the officer has the requisite skills to perform interpretation the officer shall submit and pass an examination by an expert selected by the City.

The City will accept a college degree in any foreign language as sufficient proof of the officer's ability to translate a foreign language. Such payment shall be paid in the 2nd payroll week of July.

10.8

All members of the SWAT team shall receive an annual equipment stipend in the amount of \$500.00 to be paid in the first pay period of November each year.

ARTICLE XI INSURANCE AND PENSION

- A. At the employee's sole cost, and only as may be offered by the provider, additional Delta Dental coverage beyond the basic coverage offered by the City may be elected.
- В. An employee who is covered under alternate health insurance through an employer other than the City of New Britain (e.g. spouse) may elect in writing, on a form provided by the City, to waive coverage under the City's hospital, surgical and major medical insurance plans. Employees hired prior to May 13, 2020 shall receive payment at the following rates single \$2,000.00, two person \$3,500.00, family \$4,500.00. Employees hired after May 13, 2020 shall receive payment at the following rates single \$1200.00, two person \$2700.00, family \$3700.00. These amounts will be paid on or about December 1st of each year, and prorated as necessary based on the number of calendar months out of the preceding twelve (12) months during which the City was not required to pay any premiums for hospital, surgical or major medical insurance coverage for the employee or his/her dependents. It is noted that for any new hire, these payments will be made only for the time in which the employee would have been on the City's health insurance. Please note that health insurance coverage does not begin until the first of the month following thirty days of service. For example, if an employee is hired on January 10th, health insurance coverage would not begin until March 1st. Any current employee who is married to another City employee and is receiving PILO as of May 13, 2020 shall be grandfathered. See Appendix C
- C. The City and the Union agree that the following amount will be deducted from each employee's pay towards the total cost of his/her health and dental coverage as provided under this Article (or equivalent coverage should a change of carriers be made under the terms of Section 11.3):

The term "premium cost" as used herein shall mean the fully insured rate that each carrier charges or would charge the City to provide the benefits listed below for each level of coverage (i.e., individual, two-person, and family).

Effective 7/1/15 and thereafter, all Local #1165 members (hereinafter "members") shall be offered a \$2,000/\$4,000 High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) with a Health Savings Account (HSA). HSA accounts shall be funded fifty percent (50%) of the City's contribution on or about July 1 and the remaining City fifty percent (50%) on or about January 1 annually. Members shall obtain an advance against the January (second) HSA City 50% contribution in the event the member's HSA account has been exhausted and unpaid bills exceed \$200 prior to January 1 annually. If the member has fully funded his/her portion of the HSA account prior to the January (second) HSA City 50% contribution, and said member has bills exceeding his/her HSA account total, the City shall make an additional contribution, up to the City's 50% unpaid HSA contribution. The HDHP services shall be virtually same as present through the PPO. Contributions shall be as follows:

7/1/19	15% premium cost and City to pay 50% of the deductible
7/1/20	16% premium cost and City to pay 50% of the deductible
7/1/21	16.5% premium cost and City to pay 50% of the deductible
7/1/22	17% premium cost and City to pay 50% of the deductible

Dental Plan premium cost (17%) will remain as present for those in the Flex7 Dental Plan

Vision is a separate rider and vision rates will be included in the rates of the HDHP

In the event of a predictable cost, fee or tax due to the Affordable Care Act (i.e. Excise Tax), the parties shall agree to reopen and negotiate coverage afforded by the plan to minimize the obligation and/or bargain the allocation of same amongst the City and union.

For any member continuing to be enrolled in the Century Preferred plan, the City will pay the same dollar amount toward the premium cost for each plan as the City pays for premium cost in the High deductible plan for each member enrolled at each level of coverage. The member shall pay 100% of the difference between the City's total dollar premium (Core Plan) and the total premium cost for the Century Preferred plan. Effective July 1, 2020, the Bluecare plan shall no longer be offered.

Any individual hired by the City after 7/1/2015 shall only be offered the High Deductible Health Plan with HSA for health insurance, in accordance with the above.

Employees not eligible to participate in an HSA/HRA due to active military duty, may participate in the HDHP with a health reimbursement account plan (HRA) with the same deductibles as the HDHP and same funding, with annual rollover of unused deductibles up to the maximum amount of the deductibles. Unused funds shall be deposited in employee's HSA account upon return from active duty and eligibility of an HSA if allowed pursuant to law.

Employees not eligible to participate in an HSA due to enrollment in an FSA may participate in the HDHP with a health reimbursement account plan (HRA) with the same deductibles as the HDHP and same funding until July 1, 2016. On July 1, 2016, unused funds from the City's contribution shall be deposited in employee's HSA account if allowed pursuant to law.

All employees and dependents enrolled in the City's health insurance are strongly encouraged to participate in the City of New Britain Health Enhancement Program which requires employees to do the following:

- 1. Have their physician complete a preventative health attestation form indicating each employee/dependent is current for age appropriate screenings:
 - Physical exam
 - Breast cancer screening
 - Colon cancer screening
 - Cervical cancer screening
- 2 Have their physician provide them with age appropriate biometrical results including:
 - LDL HDL, total cholesterol, blood glucose, height, weight, body mass index, waist circumference, blood pressure and pulse.
- 3. Complete an online health risk assessment, including biometrical results.

Anthem PPO Design Plan:

The City will offer the next level of dental health insurance to all current employees who are members of Anthem – flex option 7.

- Office co-pay \$30
- Inpatient Hospital Stay \$100
- Outpatient Hospital visit \$100
- Emergency Room visit \$50
- Urgent Care visit \$50
- Out of Network Deductible remain at \$200/\$400/\$400
- Out of Pocket Maximum remain at \$500/\$1000/\$1000
- Prescription Drug Co-pays \$10/\$20/\$30
- Mandatory mail-order for long term sustenance drugs
- Mail-order Pharmacy changes from a flat \$5 to 2 copays for a 90 day supply Maximum is unlimited (no change)
- Eliminate coverage for Gastric Bypass surgery
- Reduce infertility coverage to CT mandate instead of unlimited
- 50 visits combined PT/OT/ST and Chiropractic visits per member per calendar year
- \$30.00 copay for all allergy office visits regardless of PCP/Specialist copay level

Each employee may elect to participate in a group life insurance plan of the City of New Britain in the amount of \$30,000.00 during the term of employment. The City shall assume the full cost for life insurance coverage for the employee. The employee is also permitted to purchase additional life insurance at his/her own expense to a maximum of \$50,000 in accordance with the requirements of the optional life benefit program.

11.2

Members of the Department after retirement from the force will receive a \$10,000 life insurance policy, the full cost of which shall be borne by the City.

11.3

If the City finds it desirable to obtain equivalent coverage from alternate carriers, at no additional cost to the employee, the Union agrees to negotiate regarding such change of carrier upon written notice from the City of such intent. If the parties are unable to reach agreement, the City may request an evaluation of the equivalency of coverage by an arbitrator chosen under the provision of Article 13.1. If the arbitrator finds the coverage to be equivalent, the City may exercise the option of changing to the equivalent coverage through an alternate carrier. The arbitration shall be concluded within 60 days of notice by the City of intent to change insurance carrier.

- A. For employees who retire after the signing of the contract, the City shall pay the cost of insurance for individuals who were employed by the City as of July 1, 1993, for the first seven years of their retirement, subject to the following restrictions:
 - 1. The employee must be eligible for and must be collecting normal service retirement benefits under the City's pension plan or under the MERS plan. If the employee should die during the seven years, the health insurance coverage for the spouse shall be continued for 6 months and if no alternative health benefit is available to said spouse at a reasonable cost through his/her employer. After six months coverage shall terminate. If during any portion of the seven (7) year period the retiree and spouse are eligible for group health insurance coverage through any other employer, which coverage is reasonably comparable to the basic insurance provided by the City on the date of retirement, the City's obligation during that time shall be limited to reimbursement of any portion of the premiums for such coverage which are not paid or reimbursed by any other employer.
 - 2. For employees who retire prior to July 1, 2015 and meet the restrictions referenced above, the City will pay the full cost of coverage for the retiree and spouse in the case of normal service retirement after at least twenty (20) years of service with the City or retirement under the service-connected disability provisions of the pension plan; 80 % of such costs for those who retire after at

least fifteen (15) years of such service; 60% of such cost for employees who retire after at least ten (10) years of such service; and 40% of such cost for employees who retire after at least five (5) years of such service, provided in each case the employee meets the age and service requirements for normal service retirement benefits, or meets the requirements for service connected disability retirement benefits.

Effective July 1, 2015 – For those employees who retire after at least twenty (20) years of service, if the retired employee is enrolled in the High Deductible Health Plan/HSA, City shall pay 100% of member's premium cost share for the period of 7 years who are eligible for post-retirement health insurance under the CBA which shall include up to the spouse and family. The City's HSA (or HRA where applicable) deductible contribution shall remain at the percentage that the City was contributing toward active employees at the time of the employee's retirement. The City's HSA deductible contribution for retirees will be handled and paid in as is done in Section 11.0C above. The City will pay 100% of bills submitted to the Retiree HRA account up to the City's limit of \$1,000 or \$2,000 without payments from the Retiree.

At the time of retirement, those employees who are eligible for post-retirement health insurance in accordance with the CBA shall have a one-time option to enroll into a plan other than the High Deductible Health Plan and shall pay 100% of the difference between the City's total dollar premium (Core Plan) and the total premium cost for the other plan, whichever they are enrolled. Where the employee is not enrolled in the High Deductible plan, the City will cover only the employee and spouse. If the employee does not take the option to enroll in another plan at the time of retirement, they shall remain enrolled in the HDHP/HSA for the 7 year post-retirement period.

If during the seven period, the employee or the spouse reaches age 65, he or she shall be placed on Medicare (if eligible) as primary and a Medicare supplement as secondary, both subject to the City of New Britain's obligation to pay all or a portion of the cost of the premium as outlined above. If the employee (retiree) and/or spouse are not eligible for Medicare, the City of New Britain's coverage as primary shall continue through the seven year period.

Once the seven year post-retirement health insurance period is over, employee, spouse and/or dependents shall be removed from the City's health insurance coverage.

- Questions relating to the interpretation and application of this section, including eligibility for other insurance coverage and reasonable comparability of such coverage, shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.
- 4. Any retired employee must provide a termination of coverage letter in order to be readmitted to the City's health insurance program during the seven year period after retirement.

- 5. Any individual hired into the Local 1165 bargaining unit after July 1, 1993, shall not be eligible for any City paid retiree health insurance benefits as outlined in Section 11.4(1), (2), (3), (4) above.
- 6. Effective July 1, 2002, retirees who are not on a seven-year retiree insurance plan, and who are Medicare Part A and Part B eligible, shall be removed from the City's group health plan at the time of eligibility.
- B. If the total cost of any of the City's group health plans offered under this Agreement triggers an excise tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 4980I., otherwise known as the Affordable Care Act, or any other local, state or federal statute or regulation, the City of New Britain reserves the right to offer a group health plan or plans with a total combined cost that falls below the excise tax thresholds.

For each regular, full-time member of the New Britain Police Department, the pension benefits as outlined below represent the total retirement and survivor's benefits.

11.6

- A. Employees hired prior to July 1, 1990, shall pay a seven percent (7%) payroll contribution for pension purposes.
- B. Any employees hired after July 1, 1990 shall pay a five and one-half percent (5 ½ %) payroll contribution for pension purposes. In both cases, no such deduction shall be applied to overtime earnings.
- C. The City and the Union will pursue the necessary action to make employee pension contributions tax deferred, in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service's terms and conditions.
- D. Effective July 1, 1994, the employee contributions as collected shall be treated as employer contributions for federal tax purposes in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 414(h)(2) and for state tax purposes to the extent permitted under applicable state law. Collected member contributions shall be treated as employee contributions for all other purposes, including without limitation, local and state laws, cost-of-living increases, salary increases, etc. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no employee shall be given the option of choosing to receive the picked up contributions directly instead of having them paid by the City to the Police Benefit Fund.

11.7

A. Each Police Officer's payroll contribution to the pension fund shall be paid at the rate of a Police Sergeant salary, and upon retirement, said pension benefit shall be computed and granted at the rank of Police Sergeant.

- B. The contribution to the pension fund as well as the retirement computation for all other positions will be based upon the rank of the employee.
- C. Employees hired on or after April 1, 2000 will be enrolled in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) for pension purposes and will not be eligible for benefits as outlined in Section 11.6, 11.7, 11.8, 11.9, 11.11, 11.12, 11.13, 11.14, 11.15.

- A. Regardless of age, the pension benefit for individuals employed as of July 1, 1990, and thereafter will be computed based on Section 11.7 (1) and (2) above.
- B. For each regular, full-time employee who at the time of retirement has an excess of twenty (20) years of service, an additional percentage (see chart which follows) of the employee's retirement benefits shall be added to each year of allowable service after twenty (20) years regardless of age and rank to a maximum of 70%.

Years of Service	Percentage (%) of Pay
20	55%
21	56%
22	57%
23	58%
24	59%
25	60%
26	61%
27	62%
28	63%
29	64%
30	65%
31	66%
32	67%
33	68%
34	69%
35	70%

- C. There shall be no contributions for pension purposes from employees who have completed thirty-five years of service.
- D. To be eligible for a pension, employees must work a minimum of twenty (20) years. The calculation of years of service under this provision shall not include any time the employee is absent due to unpaid leave with the exception of military leave.

11.9

A. Employees hired prior to July 1, 1990, shall receive full escalation of pension benefits. As such, eligible employees after retirement shall receive a pension benefit, which is computed based on the percent of salary at retirement and the compensation being paid in

each fiscal year to active employees in the same grade as that held by such retiree at the time of retirement.

B. The parties agree to incorporate the provisions of Section 11.9(a) in a separate agreement with individual members of the bargaining unit who were employed prior to July 1, 1990. Such agreement shall be binding on the City and on such individuals regardless of the results of future negotiations between the City and the Union on the subject of escalation of pension benefits. However, the Union does not waive its rights to represent such individuals, and the City shall have no right to negotiate directly with such individuals as long as they remain employed by the City and are covered by the provisions of this article, or by successor provisions governing the escalation of pension benefits.

11.10

Employees hired after July 1, 1990 shall participate in a Deferred Compensation Plan agreed to by the City and the Union. The City shall, on behalf of such employee, contribute an amount equal to one and one-half percent (1& ½ %) of the employee's base pay into said deferred compensation plan. The employee shall participate in said plan with a minimum contribution of one and one-half percent (1 & ½ %) of base pay. Any benefits derived from such plan shall be in accordance with the plan's rules and procedures as well as applicable State and Federal laws. For employees hired after July 1, 1993, the City will contribute two percent (2%) of the employee's base pay into the deferred compensation program.

- A. Any regular member of the Police Department who shall have become permanently disqualified from performing any duties connected with the Police Department, upon a certificate of a physician(s) appointed by the Board of Police Commissioners, showing that such member is permanently disqualified from the performance of all Police duty and that such disqualification is caused by some injury received, disease contracted or exposure endured while performing the duties of his or her service without fault on his or her part shall be permanently retired by said Board of Police Commissioners and said trustees at a 55% or placed or continued on the veteran reserve force.
- B. Any regular member of the Police Department who has been employed for a minimum of ten (10) years and who becomes permanently disqualified from performing any duty upon a certificate of a physician(s) appointed by the Board of Police Commissioners, showing that such member is permanently disqualified for the performance of all police duty, and such disqualification is caused by some injury received, disease contracted or exposure endured, without fault on his or her part, may be permanently retired by said Board of Police Commissioners and said trustees at 50% of pay in the case of fifteen (15) years of completed service and 40% of pay in the case of less than fifteen (15) years of completed service.
- C. A retiree shall never collect more than 100% of the gross base pay in the permanent rank that she/he retired if she/he is pensioned on a disability pension and collecting benefits under Workers' Compensation.

For employees eligible for escalation of pension benefits under Section 11.9 of the contract, gross base pay for the purposes of this section is defined as the current base pay of active employees in the permanent rank in which she/he was classified at the time of retirement.

For employees not eligible for escalation of pension benefits, gross pay for the purposes of this section is defined as the base pay received by the employee in the permanent rank in which she/he was classified at the time of retirement.

In the case where the disability pension benefit added with the Worker's Compensation benefit exceeds 100% of gross base pay as described above, the pension benefit of the City shall be reduced by the amount in excess of 100%.

In the event of a stipulation, the portions of the stipulation which comprises temporary total benefits shall be reflected in corresponding reduction of the regular pension; workers compensation benefits for injuries resulting in permanent incapacity, either total or partial, as well as heart and hypertension awards or stipulations, shall not result in a reduction of the regular pension.

Additionally, any regular member so pensioned under this section shall be placed on veteran's reserve.

11.12

The Board of Police Commissioners shall have the power to order any member of the Department, who has been retired for reason of physical or mental disability to submit to re-examination at any time during a period of ten years from the date of retirement. Such examination to be conducted by a surgeon or surgeons appointed by said Board, shall be at the expense of the City of New Britain. Should the subject of this examination be found to be capable of returning to active duty, he/she shall be reinstated at the grade held at the time of his/her retirement. In the event said retired member shall fail to comply with the order for re-examination, or after re-examination, shall fail to comply with the request of the Board of Police Commissioners to return to duty, said Board of Police Commissioners shall have the power to stop any future pension payments until the order has been complied with.

- A. If an Employee with less than ten years of service dies as a result of an occurrence which is not compensable pursuant to the workers compensation laws or Heart and Hypertension Act of the State of Connecticut as a result of the Employee's employment as a police officer with the City of New Britain, then the designated beneficiary of the Employee shall receive \$100,000, payable in two annual installments, from the City of New Britain.
- B. Upon the death of an active or retired employee of the Police Department not covered by 11.16, a contributor to the Police pension fund, there shall be paid to his widow or her widower during his or her life in equal monthly installments, from the police benefit fund a sum equal to one-half (1/2) of the amount which her husband or his wife would have

received if he or she had continued to live and was retired, the date of such retirement if he or she was a retired police officer, or if he or she was not a retired police officer, then the date of his or her death; or if he or she shall leave no widow or widower, his or her child or children shall be paid such sum to be divided among them equally until they shall have reached the age of 18 and up to age 23 if in school as a full-time student (twelve semester hours or more). As each child's eligibility expires, his or her share shall be divided equally among the remaining children who are eligible. Should there be no widow or widower nor children, payment shall be made to the father and mother, in equal amounts or to the surviving parent, if they be dependent, such dependency to be determined by the Board of Police Commissioners. In the event there are no qualifying survivors under this section, then the contributions of the member shall be turned over to the member's estate. If such widow or widower shall remarry, all payments shall thereupon cease. The widow or widower of any retired police officer who married him or her subsequent to his or her retirement, or the children of such widow or widower, shall not be entitled to benefits awarded in this section to widows or widowers or children of retired police officers.

- A. Employees shall be fully vested after ten (10) years of continuous service in the police department. The term "fully vested" shall mean that upon separation from employment with the New Britain Police Department prior to retirement (twenty years) such employee may elect not to withdraw the contributions paid into the pension fund, and instead to collect, upon reaching the age when he/she would have been eligible for a normal (half-pay) pension, a retirement allowance based on two and one-half percent (2 & ½ %) of compensation per year of continuous service completed prior to separation from employment. Such percentage shall be applied against his/her rate of compensation (or the rate of compensation which determines his/her contributions) at the time of his/her separation from employment, without the benefit of the escalation provisions of the pension fund.
- B. Section 11.14 applies to eligible rollover distributions (as defined below) made on or after January 1, 1993. Notwithstanding any provision of the plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit a distributee's election under this section, a distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the plan administrator, to have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover.
- C. For purposes of this Section 11.14, the following terms shall have the meanings stated herein:
 - 1. Eligible rollover distribution: An eligible rollover distribution is any distribution of all or any portion of the balance to the credit of the distributee, except that an eligible rollover distribution does not include: the return of after-tax employee contribution; life annuity benefits whether payable on account of retirement, disability, or death; any distribution that is one of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life (or life expectance) of the distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the

distributee and the distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten years or more; any distribution to the extent such distribution is required under section 401(a)(9) of the Code; and the portion of any distribution that is not includible in gross income.

- 2. Eligible retirement plan: An eligible retirement plan is an individual retirement account described in section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement annuity described in section 408(b) of the Code, an annuity plan described in section 403(a) of the Code, or a qualified trust described in section 401(a) of the Code, that accepts the distributee's eligible rollover distribution. However, in the case of an eligible rollover distribution to the surviving spouse, an eligible retirement plan is an individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity.
- 3. Distributee: A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified domestic relation order, as defined in section 414(p) of the Code, are distributees with regard to the interest of the spouse or former spouse.
- 4. Direct rollover: A direct rollover is a payment by the plan to the eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee.

- There shall be in the City of New Britain a fund to be known as the police benefit fund, to A. consist of the fund now known as the police benefit fund; such sums of money as shall be appropriated to said fund; all income from investments made under subsection d; all property specifically devised or given for the benefit of disabled police officers of said city, and property given to the police department of said city on account of services rendered by said department; all lost, abandoned, unclaimed or stolen money, and all monies arising from the sale of unclaimed, abandoned, lost or stolen property in charge of the Board of Police Commissioners of said City, now or at any time hereafter available for that purpose by the laws of this state and proceeds from gambling raids; all rewards, fees, gifts, testimonials and emoluments that may be presented to any member of the police force of said City on account of special services, except such as said Board of Police Commissioners may allow any member or members to retain, and all monies collected from members of said police force by way of fines or forfeiture of pay imposed or ordered by said board; assessments to be made to said fund on the base rate compensation of the regular members of the police department at the rate specified in Section 11.6 (1) and (2) of the contract and a matching assessment by the City, payable weekly. Said contributions to the police benefit fund by the regular members of the police department and the matching contributions of the City shall be considered income and shall be added to the principal of said fund.
- B. The mayor, the city treasurer and the members of the Board of Police Commissioners, and three active police officers of the police force of said City, said employees to be appointed by the Common Council of said City every 2 years at its May meeting in even-numbered years, upon nomination of the active police force of the City, for the term of 2

years and until their successors shall be appointed and qualified, shall be a board of trustees of the police benefit fund of the City, and the treasurer thereof. The chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners shall be president of the board of trustees and there shall be a secretary of said board of trustees who shall be chosen by said board. The secretary shall keep a record of the proceedings of said board of trustees and all actions taken by it in regard to the fund. Said board of trustees shall meet semi-annually or more frequently, if necessary.

- C. The board of trustees shall regulate the manner of disbursements from the fund and for that purpose shall appoint a bank in the City of New Britain as its agent. Such agent may be required to give bond with surety payable to the City conditioned for the faithful performance of its duty and the board of trustees may fix reasonable compensation for the services of such bank as agent.
- D. The board of trustees may direct the treasurer to invest any portion of the fund in any securities in which trust funds may be invested by the laws of the State of Connecticut or to deposit the same, or any portion thereof, in any savings banks of the state, or said board may appoint a bank in the City of New Britain as its agent in the performance of its duties in the care, custody and investment of said funds, in securities in which trust funds may be invested by the laws of the state, at such compensation, if any, as may be filed by the board of trustees, and said agent may be required to give bond, with surety, payable to the City, conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties.
- E. The said board of trustees shall report to the Common Council yearly the condition of said fund, with all the items of receipts and disbursements on account thereof. If the income of the police benefit fund shall be found at any time insufficient to meet the requirements upon it, the City upon the application of said board of trustees to the Common Council shall make an appropriation to make good such deficiency, and any prospective deficiency in the income of said fund shall be provided for by said City in its annual appropriation for the police department.
- F. In addition to the regular and supernumerary police force of the City of New Britain, there shall be an honorary grade known as the veteran reserve, to which the Board of Police Commissioners of said City may transfer any member of the police force who shall, through age, or physical disabilities incurred in the discharge of his duties, become permanently disqualified for the active duties of the police department, but such transfer may be revoked at any time if the disability shall be removed, and the member shall thereupon be returned to active duty in the police department. The pay of a member of the veteran reserve shall be one-half pay, or less in accordance with Section 11.11 (b), but the Board of Police Commissioners may call upon any member of the veteran reserve for such temporary services as he may be fitted to perform, and during such service he shall receive the full pay of a regular Police Officer.
- G. All money and personal property seized by Police Officers in gaming cases within the City of New Britain, wherein a conviction is had of the violation of the laws regarding gaming, may, in the discretion of the circuit court, be declared forfeited and be ordered to be turned over to the police benefit fund of said City, in lieu of the provisions of law for condemnation proceedings and the disposition of property seized in gaming cases,

provided, however, that such court shall not order to be forfeited and turned over to said benefit fund any of said property which in its discretion should be ordered to be destroyed under condemnation proceeding and provided that reasonable notice is given to the owners of such property of a hearing before said court as to the disposition of such property so seized. Any person aggrieved by the order of said court in the premises shall have the same right of appeal that may now exist by law in cases of condemnation proceedings of gambling implements.

11.16

Should an Employee lose his or her life as a result of an occurrence which is compensable pursuant to the workers' compensation laws of the State of Connecticut as a result of the Employee's employment as a police officer with the City of New Britain, then the City shall pay the spouse of the Employee at time of death, or his eligible dependents if no spouse is living, one hundred percent of the Employee's salary, annually, until the spouse dies or remarries, or each of the eligible dependents reach the age of 23 years. Additionally, the City shall provide health insurance to the eligible spouse and dependents the same as provided to active police employees.

11.17

The city agrees to contribute to the Police Officer and Firefighters Survivors Benefit fund the statutory amount required under CGS 7-323e, as may be amended from time to time, on behalf of each union member covered by the MERS pension.

ARTICLE XII SAFETY, HEALTH AND CLOTHING

12.0

A joint safety committee shall be formed consisting of no more than three (3) members of the bargaining unit and such representatives of the City as the Police Board shall designate. Meetings shall be held periodically to review and recommend safety and health conditions in the Department.

12.1

A. New members of the Department shall receive a clothing allowance for the fiscal year of their appointment as follows:

Appointment prior to December 1st:.....\$750.00

Appointment during the remainder of the fiscal year.....\$575.00

B. Subsequent to the first fiscal year of employment, each member shall receive an annual allowance of \$1,000.00

ARTICLE XIII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

13.0

For the purpose of this Agreement, a grievance shall be deemed to mean a dispute between an employee and/or the Union with the City over the interpretation or application of a section of this Agreement. No grievance may be raised after fifteen (15) calendar days of the event giving rise to it, except by mutual agreement before the expiration of original time limit.

13.1

When filed, a grievance shall be handled in accordance with the procedure set forth below, provided nothing shall preclude an employee or the Union from informally resolving a grievance. In matters of termination, Section 8.3 and 8.7 shall apply.

Step 1.

The grievance shall be put in writing by the employee and/or Union Representative, setting forth the section of the Agreement involved, and shall be submitted to the Chief of Police or his designee. The Chief or his designee shall render in writing an answer to the grievance within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of the written grievance.

Step 2.

If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the Chief or his designee, such grievant and/or Union Steward or Union Representative may submit the grievance in writing to the Mayor or Mayor's designee within seven (7) calendar days of the receipt of such decision from Chief or his designee. The Mayor or Mayor's designee shall submit a decision in writing within seven (7) calendar days following the receipt of the written grievance.

Step 3.

If a grievance is not settled at Step 2, it may be submitted at the request of the Union to arbitration before the Connecticut State Board of Mediation and Arbitration. The Union's request for arbitration shall be in writing and must be filed with the State Board not later than thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the written answer of the Mayor or Mayor's designee at Step 2. If designated by the Union in its notice of intent to arbitrate, the Union may request the services of a mediator prior to submitting the matter to arbitration provided in no event may the case be submitted to arbitration later than twenty (20) working days after the first meeting with the mediator or unless mutually agreed otherwise. The Arbitrators shall hear and decide only one (1) grievance at a time unless otherwise mutually agreed. Their award shall be final and binding as provided by law. The Arbitrators shall be bound by and must comply with all the terms of this Agreement and shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or in any way modify the provisions of this Agreement. In matter of grievances regarding termination, Article 8.3 and 8.7 shall apply.

13.2

Any time limits specified within this Article, except for the initial filing of a grievance, may be extended by mutual agreement in writing of the Union and the City provided that if a grievance

is not submitted to a higher step in the above procedure it shall be deemed settled on the basis of the City's answer in the last step considered.

13.3

In hearing and deciding grievances between the parties, the Connecticut State Board of Mediation and Arbitration shall have all the powers and responsibilities prescribed by law, and shall act in accordance with its rules and procedures, subject to the terms of this agreement and any joint submission or statement of issues on which the parties may agree.

ARTICLE XIV UNION BUSINESS

14.0

No more than one Steward on each shift shall be designated by the Union to handle grievances. Such person shall be permitted to adjust grievances during working hours without loss of pay up to a maximum of four (4) hours each per month, provided that they shall notify their immediate supervisor when leaving their position for such purposes.

14.1

Two officers of the Local Union (President and Vice President or their designees) shall be permitted to attend to union business during working hours without loss of pay up to a maximum of sixteen (16) hours each per month provided that they shall notify their immediate supervisor when leaving their position for such purposes. Should the President, Vice President or Steward require additional union time beyond what allowed in Sections 14.0 and 14.1, they shall make a request to the Chief and the Chief shall in his/her discretion decide on whether or not grant the request based upon the efficiency of the department.

14.2

Two (2) members of the Union Grievance Committee shall be granted leave from duty with full pay for all meetings between the City and the Union for the purpose of processing grievances, when such meetings take place at a time during which such members are scheduled to be on duty.

14.3

Two (2) members of the Local Union shall be permitted time off to attend mediation conferences, arbitration hearings, and labor relations board hearings without loss of pay for any hours during which they have been scheduled to work.

14.4

Four (4) members of the Local Union shall be permitted time off to participate in negotiations for renewal or modification of this contract under Article XVI without loss of pay for any hours during the day during which they would have been scheduled to work.

14.5

Members of the Executive Board of the Labor Union shall be allowed to attend the monthly meeting of the Executive Board, without loss of pay, if held during the time when any such member would be scheduled to work provided that no more than seven (7) members from any one shift shall receive pay under this section.

14.6

Three (3) members of the second shift shall be allowed to attend the regular monthly meeting of the Union without loss of pay provided that approval is received from the Chief or Deputy Chief at least one (1) day prior to the meeting.

14.7

Authorized Union Functions: Union officers and all delegates not to exceed five (5) shall be granted leave with pay not to exceed two (2) weeks each per year to attend officially sponsored meetings, conferences or conventions providing no compensation for lost time is received by the employees from the Union. One (1) week advance notice shall be given unless such function is scheduled to be held within a shorter time.

ARTICLE XV GENERAL PROVISIONS

15.0

The City agrees that there will be no lockout of any employee or employees during the life of this Agreement. The Union and the individual employees covered hereunder expressly agree that there will be no strike, slowdown, work stoppage, sick out, or mass unexcused absenteeism during the life of this Agreement.

15.1

- A. The City agrees that it will provide legal assistance for any members covered by this Agreement against any legal action, demand or suit, brought by third parties against such members, provided, however, that such claim, demand or suit shall arise out of the performance of their duty. It shall be presumed members were not acting ultra vires despite any such allegation by a third party, until a judgment on such allegation is rendered against such members and in that event the members shall reimburse the City for any attorneys fees, not including the cost of representation by the City's attorney. This section shall not apply to criminal charges brought against any member.
- B. The City will provide reimbursement of an amount not to exceed \$1,000 in Attorney fees for an Attorney approved by the City for statements in pre-charge investigations by the State Police in shooting cases and cases involving deadly force. Proof of billable hours must be provided to the City before payment is made. This section applies only to statements in pre-charge investigations by the State Police in cases involving shooting and/or deadly force. The City of New Britain will not be responsible for any costs or fees including attorney fees for any criminal proceedings.

15.2

Up to five (5) members of the Department shall be granted one (1) day off each without loss of pay in each fiscal year to attend the annual convention of the State Police Association of Connecticut.

15.3

Regular members of the Department who are members of the Revolver Team will be permitted necessary time off without loss of pay to participate in Pistol matches against other Police Departments from other towns in Hartford County in the Connecticut Pistol and Revolver League competitions provided that two (2) days advance notice of such matches shall be given to the office of the Chief or Deputy Chief of Police. Members of the Revolver Team must maintain an average of 150 in order to qualify for out-of-town meets.

15.4

Effective July 1, 2023, employees who were hired prior to May 13, 2020 and who choose to park in the parking garage shall pay \$10.00 per month for parking and employees hired after May 13, 2020 and who choose to park in the parking garage shall pay \$20.00 per month for parking. Any increase to the monthly parking fee in this section will be limited to employees hired after ratification until July 1, 2033.

15.5

Members of the Department who are designated by the Chief to be an official delegate to represent the Department at the funeral of another officer killed in the line of duty will be granted time off without loss of pay if scheduled to work.

15.6

Exclusive of Section 5.0(c)(1), specifically outlining the eight-hour training shift for employees on the 4-2 work week, members of the Department will be paid at the time and a half rate of their regular hourly rate, when they are required by state statute or ordered by the chief, or his designee, to attend Department sponsored schools or special training courses, that are held when they are not otherwise regularly scheduled to work.

Nothing herein shall prevent the City from avoiding overtime pay for training by scheduling training during an employees regular shift, or changing such employees regular shift to coincide with a day time training schedule, providing the employees scheduled days off are not changed.

15.7

When members not regularly scheduled to work are required to appear in court or before administrative agencies to testify in their capacities as police officers, such members will be paid for the actual time devoted to such appearances, portal to portal, at one and one-half (1 & ½) times their regular hourly rate. Any payments received by such members from the State of

Connecticut pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §52-260(b), as amended, shall be delivered to and/or assigned over to the City.

Effective July 1, 2020, there shall be a minimum of four hour for court appearances. Compensatory time cannot be chosen in lieu of payment.

15.8

The City of New Britain shall maintain eligibility lists for detective and sergeant promotions and shall fill any vacancies within 90 days unless there is a catastrophic event. The 90 day period may be extended by mutual consent.

15.9

K9 officers shall be assigned to take home cruisers. The City reserves the right to remove this right should a complaint be received and is verified that the officer committed violations of the Department Policy or Rules and Regulations while operating or using said vehicle.

15.10

The sum of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) shall be allocated by the Department each fiscal year to help defray the expenses of the Revolver Club.

15.11

The City agrees to reimburse any regular employee for the tuition cost of any continuing education course of instruction related to police work and approved by the Chief, provided the employee satisfactorily completes each course with a passing grade. The City agrees to reimburse the employee for any required textbook cost for such courses as are approved and completed under the foregoing paragraph if the employee is not eligible for reimbursement from any other source. Both the reimbursement of tuition cost and the reimbursement for textbook costs are subject to a combined maximum of \$2500 for the bargaining unit per contract year. The \$2500 may be used equally between all officers who have applied. Officers must present expenditure receipts to receive any funds. Reimbursement for educational expenses will be made twice a year.

15.12

The parties recognize and agree to continue for the period of this Agreement the existing Apprenticeship on-the-job Training Program approved by the Connecticut State Apprenticeship Council for regular employees classified as eligible veterans under the provisions of Public Law 90-77, Veterans Education and Training Act.

15.13

The Chief may, at his option, call an assembly of employees no more than once in each half of a contract year for the purpose of general discussion relating to police work. These assemblies

will not exceed one hour and shall be without remuneration to the employee and shall be scheduled on advance notice prior to the start of shift.

15.14

The Department shall conduct in-service firearms training on a regular basis. The Department shall provide sufficient rounds of ammunition for each employee to qualify at least twice a year in the personal weapon they carry on duty.

15.15

There shall be no restriction concerning the residence of any member covered by this Agreement other than that the employee must reside in Connecticut.

15.16

Members of the bargaining unit who engage in secondary employment shall do so only with the understanding that their primary duty, obligation and responsibility is to the City, and that they are subject to call at any time for emergencies.

15.17

The Personnel Rules of the Civil Service Commission shall apply when not in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

15.18

The City shall provide the Union for each of its members of the Department, and any new employee when hired, a copy of this Agreement. The City shall further provide the Union with one hundred (100) extra copies hereof with blue covers.

15.19

As a condition of employment, employees hired after July 1, 1987, shall be non-smokers and shall remain non-smokers for the duration of their employment. In addition all employees are prohibited from the use of any tobacco product during working hours. Failure to do so will be grounds for progressive discipline as follows:

First Infraction Verbal Reprimand
Second Infraction Written Reprimand
Third Infraction One Day Suspension
Fourth Infraction Ten Day Suspension Maximum

Fifth Infraction Termination Maximum

15.20

Field Training Officers shall be paid one hour of pay at his/her overtime rate of pay for each shift that such officers are training a recruit or alternatively one and one-half hours of compensatory time. Compensatory time must be used within a year of the date earned.

DRUG TESTING POLICY

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide all sworn employees of the New Britain Police Department with a notice of the provisions of the department's drug-testing program.

II. POLICY

It is the policy of this department that the critical mission of law enforcement justifies maintenance of a drug free work environment through the use of a reasonable employee drugtesting program.

The law enforcement profession has several uniquely compelling interests that justify the use of employee drug-testing. The public has a right to expect that those who are sworn to protect them are at all times both physically and mentally prepared to assume these duties. There is sufficient evidence to conclude that the use of controlled substances, and other forms of drug abuse will seriously impair an employee's physical and mental health, and thus, their job performance. Where law enforcement officers participate in illegal drug use and drug activity, the integrity of the law enforcement profession, and public confidence in it are destroyed. This confidence is further eroded by the potential for corruption created by drug use. Therefore, in order to ensure the integrity of the department, and to preserve public trust and confidence in a fit and drug-free law enforcement profession, this department has implemented a drug-testing program to detect prohibited drug use by sworn employees.

III. DEFINITIONS

- 1. Sworn Employee--Those employees of the City of New Britain Police Department who have been formally vested with full law enforcement powers and authority.
- 2. Supervisor--Those sworn employees of the City of New Britain Police Department assigned to a position having intermittent or day-to-day responsibility for supervising subordinates, or who are responsible for commanding a work element.
- 3. Drug Test--The compulsory production and submission of urine and or hair sampling by an employee in accordance with departmental procedures, for chemical analysis to detect prohibited drug usage.
- 4. Reasonable suspicion--That quantity of proof or evidence that is more than a hunch, but less than probable cause. Reasonable suspicion must be based on specific, objective facts and any rationally derived inferences from those facts about the conduct of an individual that would lead the reasonable person to suspect that the individual is, or has been using drugs while on or off-duty.
- 5. Employee or Probationary Employee--For the purposes of this policy only, an employee shall mean any sworn member of the City of New Britain Police Department. A

probationary employee shall be considered any person who is conditionally employed with the City of New Britain Police Department as a Police Trainee/Officer.

6. Department--References to, for purposes of this policy, shall mean the New Britain Police Department.

IV. PROCEDURES/RULES

A. Prohibited Activity:

The following provisions shall apply to all department applicants, probationary and sworn employees, while on and off duty:

- 1. No employee shall illegally possess any controlled substance or anabolic steroid.
- No employee shall ingest any controlled or other dangerous substance, or anabolic steroid unless as prescribed by a licensed medical practitioner.
 - a. Employees shall notify their immediate supervisor when required to use prescription medicine which they have been informed has the potential to impair job performance. The employee shall advise the supervisor of the known side effects of such medication, and the prescribed period of use.
 - b. Supervisors shall document this information through the use of an internal memorandum and maintain this memorandum in a secured file.
 - c. The employee may be temporarily reassigned to other duties, where appropriate.
- 3. No employee shall ingest any prescribed or over-the-counter medication in amounts beyond the recommended dosage.
- 4. Any employee who unintentionally ingests, or is made to ingest a controlled substance shall immediately report the incident to their supervisor so that appropriate medical steps may be taken to ensure the officer's health and safety.
- 5. Any employee having a reasonable basis to believe that another employee is illegally using, or in possession of any controlled substance shall immediately report the facts and circumstances to his or her supervisor.
- 6. It is understood and agreed that the first employee violation of this policy shall administratively result in a suspension of up to four calendar weeks. In addition, an employee in violation shall be placed on a probationary period of one year or more depending on the extent of the violation. Any further policy violations under this section shall lead to additional disciplinary action up to and including discharge. Any disciplinary action under this section is not grievable by the employee or the union in any administrative or judicial forum.

- 7. Violations of certain sections of this Policy, those in violation of State and Federal law, will put the employee in a position to be charged criminally.
- 8. It is further agreed that any of the above disciplinary action for a violation of this policy does not preclude the city from initiating any additional disciplinary action if the policy violation has resulted in criminal charges and/or other acts of employee misconduct or wrongdoing. Any disciplinary action up to and including discharge for criminal and/or administrative misconduct or wrongdoing under this section is subject to the grievance procedure.

B. Probationary Employee Drug-Testing

1. All probationary employees shall be required as a condition of employment to participate in any unannounced random drug tests scheduled for the probationary period. The frequency and timing of such tests shall be determined by the Chief or his/her designee.

C. Employee Drug Testing

Sworn officers will be required to take drug tests as a condition of continued employment in order to ascertain prohibited drug use, as provided below:

- 1. A supervisor may order an employee to take a drug test upon documented reasonable suspicion that the employee is or has been using drugs. A summary of the facts supporting the order shall be made available to the employee prior to the actual test.
- 2. A drug test will be administered as part of any regular physical examination required by this department.
- 3. All sworn officers shall be uniformly tested during any unannounced, random testing required by the department.
 - a. The Chief or his/her designee shall determine the frequency and timing of such tests.
 - b. Testing will be done on a Division and/or unit thereof basis.
- 4. If the Department or City elects, a drug test shall be considered as a condition of application to the specialized units or promotion within the department.

D. Drug-Testing Procedures

- 1. The testing procedures and safeguards provided in this policy to ensure the integrity of department drug testing shall be adhered to by any personnel administering drug tests.
- 2. Personnel authorized to administer drug tests shall require positive identification from each employee to be tested before they enter the testing area.

- 3. A pre-test interview shall be conducted by medical testing personnel only with each employee in order to ascertain and document the recent use of any prescription or non-prescription drugs, or any indirect exposure to drugs that may result in a false positive test result.
- 4. The bathroom facility of the testing area shall be private and secure.
 - a. Authorized testing personnel shall search the facility before an employee enters it to produce a urine sample, and document that it is free of any foreign substances.
 - b. No employee of the Police Department or the City of New Britain or a representative, agent or designee thereof engaged in a urinalysis drug testing program shall directly observe an employee in the process of producing and submitting the urine specimen.
- 5. Where the employee appears unable, or unwilling to give a specimen at the time of the test, testing personnel shall document the circumstances on the drug-test report form. The employee shall be permitted no more than eight hours to give a sample, during which time he/she shall remain in the testing area, under observation. Reasonable amounts of water may be given to the employee to encourage urination. Failure to submit a sample shall be considered a refusal to submit to a drug test.
- 6. Employees shall have the right to request that their urine sample be split and stored in case of legal disputes. The urine samples must be provided at the same time, and marked and placed in identical specimen containers by authorized testing personnel. One sample shall be submitted for immediate drug testing. The other sample shall remain at the facility in frozen storage. This sample shall be made available to the employee or his attorney should the original sample result in a legal dispute or the chain of custody be broken.
- 7. Specimen samples shall be sealed, labeled and checked against the identity of the employee to ensure the results match the tested specimen. Samples shall be stored in a secured and refrigerated atmosphere until tested or delivered to the testing lab facility.
- 8. Whenever there is a reason to believe that the employee may have altered or substituted the specimen to be provided, a second specimen shall be obtained immediately, under direct observation of the testing personnel.
- 9. Any hair samples will be afforded similar related procedures in order to ensure reliability and accuracy.

E. Drug-Testing Methodology

- 1. Before the Department shall take any personnel action based on a positive drug test, the following testing procedures shall be utilized.
 - i. An initial screening test the urine sample is first tested using the initial drug

screening procedure. An initial positive test result will not be considered; rather, it will be classified as "confirmation pending." Notification of test results to the Chief of Police shall be held until the confirmation test results are obtained.

- ii. First confirmatory test a specimen testing positive will undergo a confirmation test using a methodology different and more sensitive since the initial screening test.
- iii. Second confirmatory test a specimen testing positive on a first confirmatory test will undergo a second confirmatory test utilizing the gas chromatography and mass spectrometry methodology which has been determined by the Union and the City to be as reliable or more reliable than this methodology.
- 2. The drug screening and/or hair sampling test selected shall be capable of identifying marijuana, cocaine, and every major drug of abuse including heroin, amphetamine and barbiturates. Personnel utilized for testing will be certified as qualified to collect urine and/or hair samples or adequately trained in collection procedures.
- 3. Concentrations of a drug at or above the following levels shall be considered a positive test result when using the initial drug screen test:

URINALYSIS

Initial Test

Level(ng/ml)

100
300
300*
25
1,000
200
200
200
200
200

^{*25} ng/ml if immunoassay specific for free morphine.

Concentrations of a drug at or above the following levels shall be considered a positive test result when performing a confirmatory GC/MS test on a urine specimen that tested positive using a technologically different initial screening method:

Confirmatory Test

Level (ng/ml)

Marijuana metabolite	150 (1)
Cocaine metabolite	150 (2)

Opiates:

Morphine	300*
Codeine	300*
Phencyclidine	25
Amphetamines:	
Amphetamine	500
Methamphetamine	500
Barbiturates	
Amobarbital	200
Butabarbital	200
Butalbital	200
Penobarbital	200
Phenobarbital	200
Secobarbital	200
Benzodiazepines	200
Methadone	200
Methaqualone	200
Propoxyphene	200

- (1) Delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol-9-carboxylic acid
- (2) Benzoylecgonine
- a. The appropriate and acceptable concentration of drug standards related to the use of hair samples will also be utilized, where applicable.
- 4. The laboratory selected to conduct the analysis shall be experienced and capable of quality control, documentation, chain-of-custody, technical expertise, and demonstrated proficiency in urinalysis.
- 5. Employees having negative drug test results shall receive a memorandum stating that no illegal drugs were found. If the employee requests such, a copy of the letter will be placed in the employee's personnel file. When an employee leaves the employment of the City, he or she may request that any letter of negative drug results be removed from his or her personnel file. Upon such request, the City shall remove such letters within seven (7) days of the employee's separation.
 - a. The appropriate and acceptable concentration of drug standards related to the use of hair samples will also be utilized, where applicable.

F. Chain of Evidence-Storage

- 1. Each step in the collecting and processing of the urine specimens or hair sampling shall be documented to establish procedural integrity and the chain of custody.
- 2. Where a positive result is confirmed, urine specimens shall be maintained in secured, refrigerated storage for an indefinite period. Applicable procedures shall also be applied in the case of hair sampling.

G. Drug-Test Results

- 1. All records pertaining to department required drug tests shall remain confidential, and shall not be provided to other employers or agencies without the written permission of the person whose records are sought except as required by law.
- 2. Drug test results and records shall be stored and retained in compliance with state law, or for an indefinite period in a secured area where there is no applicable state law.
- 3. An employee, upon request, shall be provided with a copy of any positive urinalysis or hair drug test result.

15.22

At the sole discretion of the City, the City may provide and pay the cost of medical examinations for each employee once every two years which shall consist of a Human Performance Evaluation. Medical examinations shall be conducted by a doctor or medical group selected by the City. Medical examinations shall include analysis of blood pressure, stress and other items related to heart and hypertension problems only. Results of the medical examinations shall be available to the individual employee and to the Police Chief and Personnel Director. The employee will be required to sign any necessary medical releases. The results of the medical examinations shall include recommendations by the physician or medical group designed to minimize potential heart and hypertension problems.

Employees shall be subject to bi-annual examinations which consist of a Human Performance Evaluation.

PHYSICAL, FITNESS AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS

- 1. The City and the Union agree it is the responsibility of each affected employee to achieve and maintain a reasonable level of physical fitness and general good health.
- 2. All employees shall be required to undergo an annual examination which shall consist of a human performance evaluation to ensure that he/she can perform the essential functions of his/her position.
- 3. Annual examinations shall be scheduled on an annual basis.
- 4. An employee who does not successful complete his/her annual examination shall be given six (6) months to retake the human performance evaluation. An employee shall not be taken off the road unless there is a doctor's report stating that the employee cannot perform the essential functions of his/her position.

15.24

This section becomes null and void when section 2.3 becomes operative.

A. The Police Officer assigned to the formerly classified Dog Warden duties shall be

referred to as the Animal Control Officer and shall receive his/her regular rate of pay.

- B. The regular workweek for the Animal Control Officer will be Monday through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.
- C. Any work associated with animal control activities that is required by the Police Department on Saturday and Sunday shall be assigned to the non-union, part-time, civilian assistants. Any overtime work required on Monday through Friday shall first be offered to the Animal Control Officer. If he/she refuses or is not available, the overtime shall then be assigned to the non-union, part-time, civilian assistants. If the assistants are not available, the overtime will then be offered to sworn police officers.
- D. It is agreed that the selection of any employee for the Animal Control Officer assignment will be in accordance with Section 4.4 of the agreement between the City and Local 1165.

With exception of the assignment of the present Animal Control Officer, any future assignments will be made by the Chief of Police as follows:

- 1. The notice of the special assignment to the Animal Control Officer position shall be posted so that interested bargaining unit employees may submit their names for consideration.
- 2. The Chief of Police or his designated designee shall select and convene an oral interviewing panel of either departmental or non-departmental individuals for the purpose of interviewing all interested employees for the Animal Control Officer special assignment. The Chief of Police may elect to sit on the panel if he so desires.
- 3. The panel shall make their recommendations to the Chief of Police. In addition to the recommendations of the panel, the Chief of Police may also consider any employees' work background relative to their suitability for the Animal Control Officer special assignment.

15.25

The City and the Union will implement a medical reimbursement account. Such account will permit employees to designate a pre-determined amount from each paycheck before taxes to use against certain qualified expenses. The account will be structured in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth by the Internal Revenue Service.

15.26

The Union waives any right to any positions whose work will be principally responsible for parking meter or parking enforcement activities. A geographical area where these positions may be utilized will be approved by the City and the Union. It is acknowledged by the City that these positions will not perform any other enforcement work customarily performed by Local 1165 employees.

ARTICLE XVI DURATION AND RENEWAL

16.0

The parties agree that points covered hereinabove constitute the full and complete agreement between them and supersedes all prior written agreements and memoranda of understandings, with the exception of paragraph 1A entitled "Option" of a certain memorandum entitled Re: "Voluntary Retirement" executed in 1975, with respect thereto for the employee covered hereunder. Each party has been fully represented and had adequate opportunity to make proposals and counter-proposals and neither shall be required, without its consent, unless provided otherwise in this Agreement, to bargain further during the term of this Agreement on any subject matter discussed during contract negotiations, unless and until notice, in accordance with Section 16.3 below is given.

16.1

No individual employee in the bargaining unit or representative agent or employee of the City may enter into a separate agreement or understanding which will be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.

16.2

This Agreement may be altered or modified only by mutual written agreement of both parties.

16.3

If either the Union or the City desires to meet for the purpose of negotiating changes or modifications in the provisions of this Agreement, either party shall give written notice of such desire to the other by certified or registered mail not more than one hundred fifty (150) days nor less than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration hereof. In such event negotiations will commence no later than fifteen (15) days after receipt of notice.

16.4

This Agreement shall be binding upon the City and the Union as of the date of signing and salaries and other direct economic benefits which can be applied retroactively shall become effective July 1, 2019 and shall continue to full force and effect until midnight of the 30th day of June, 2023, when it shall expire.

	·	

Appendix A For those hired prior to May 1, 2015

D C1-	<u> </u>			······································	 		
Pay Scale	┿	7/4/2040		7/4/2020	 7/4/2024		7/4/2022
		7/1/2019		7/1/2020	7/1/2021		7/1/2022
	_			2.00%	 2.25%		2.25%
Police Trainee	╀.		<u> </u>				
(Time Spent in Academy)	\$	62,042	\$	63,283	\$ 64,707	\$	66,163
Patrol Officer - 1st Step	_				 		······
(After graduation from academy)	4-				 		
1st shift	\$	69,035	\$	70,416	\$ 72,000	\$	73,620
2nd shift	\$	71,796	\$	73,232	\$ 74,880	\$	76,564
3rd shift	\$	73,177	\$	74,640	\$ 76,319	\$	78,037
4th shift	\$	72,486	\$	73,936	\$ 75,599	\$	77,300
Patrol Officer - 2nd Step					 		····
(16 months)							
1st shift	\$	72,023	\$	73,463	\$ 75,116	\$	76,806
2nd shift	\$	74,904	\$	76,402	\$ 78,121	\$	79,879
3rd shift	\$	76,344	\$	77,871	\$ 79,623	\$	81,415
4th shift	\$	75,623	\$	77,136	\$ 78,871	\$	80,646
Patrol Officer - Final Step							
1st shift	\$	75,130	\$	76,632	\$ 78,356	\$	80,120
2nd shift	\$	78,135	\$	79,697	\$ 81,490	\$	83,324
3rd shift	\$	79,638	\$	81,230	\$ 83,058	\$	84,927
4th shift	\$	78,887	\$	80,464	\$ 82,275	\$	84,126
Detective							
1st shift	\$	83,619	\$	85,292	\$ 87,211	\$	89,173
2nd shift	\$	86,964	\$	88,703	\$ 90,699	\$	92,740
Sergeant							
1st shift	\$	91,312	\$	93,138	\$ 95,234	\$	97,376
2nd shift	\$	94,964	\$	96,864	\$ 99,043	\$	101,272
3rd shift	\$	96,790	\$	98,726	\$ 100,947	\$	103,219
				·	·	·	,
Lieutenant							
1st shift	\$	101,629	\$	103,662	\$ 105,994	\$	108,379
2nd shift		105,695	\$	107,809	\$ 110,234	\$	112,715
3rd shift	_	107,727	\$	109,881	\$ 112,354	\$	114,882
		,		,	,	•	.,
Captain	\$	113,113	\$	115,375	\$ 117,971	\$	120,626

APPENDIX B PAY SCALE FOR EMPLOYEE HIRED AFTER MAY 1, 2015

Pay Scale				
	7/1/2019	7/1/2020	7/1/2021	7/1/2022
		2.00%	2.25%	2.25%
Police Trainee	\$50,768	\$51,783	\$52,948	\$54,140
(Time Spent in Acade	emy -6 months)			
	,			
Patrol Officer - 1st St				
(After graduation fro	m academy - 18 months)		
1st shift	\$56,409	\$57,537	\$58,832	\$60,155
2nd shift	\$58,665	\$59,838	\$61,185	\$62,561
3rd shift	\$59,794	\$60,990	\$62,362	\$63,765
4th shift	\$59,229	\$60,414	\$61,773	\$63,163
				:
Patrol Officer - 2nd S	itep		_	
(30 months)				
1st shift	\$ 69,035	\$70,416	\$72,000	\$73,620
2nd shift	\$ 71,796	\$73,232	\$74,880	\$76,565
3rd shift	\$ 73,176	\$74,640	\$76,319	\$78,036
4th shift	\$ 72,486	\$73,935	\$75,599	\$77,300
Patrol Officer - 3rd S	tep			
(42 months)				
1st shift	\$ 72,023	\$73,463	\$75,116	\$76,806
2nd shift	\$ 74,904	\$76,402	\$78,121	\$79,879
3rd shift	\$ 76,344	\$77,871	\$79,623	\$81,414
4th shift	\$ 75,624	\$77,136	\$78,872	\$80,646
D : 10(f)	C. (5444 1)	1		
Patrol Officer - Final		A75 620	470.057	400.400
1st shift	\$ 75,130		\$78,357	\$80,120
2nd shift	\$ 78,135		\$81,491	\$83,324
3rd shift	\$ 79,638	\$81,231	\$83,058	\$84,927
4th shift	\$ 78,886	\$80,464	\$82,275	\$84,126

APPENDIX C Payment In Lieu of Insurance Grandfathered Employees

Jared Barsaleau Jenifer Yarsawich Tina Steele Robert Krysiak James McColgan





City of New Britain H S A

Lumenos HSA Plan Summary

The Lumenos® HSA plan is designed to empower you to take control of your health, as well as the dollars you spend on your health care. This plan gives you the benefits you would receive from a typical health plan, plus health care dollars to spend your way. And you'll have access to personalized services and online tools to help you reach your health potential.

Your Lumenos HSA Plan

First - Use your HSA to pay for covered services: Health Savings Account

With the Lumenos Health Savings Account (HSA), you can contribute pre-tax dollars to your HSA account. Others may also contribute dollars to your account. You can use these dollars to help meet your annual deductible responsibility. Unused dollars can be saved or invested and accumulate through retirement.

Contributions to Your HSA

For 2020, contributions can be made to your HSA up to the following: \$3,550 individual coverage \$7,100 family coverage

Note: These limits apply to all combined contributions from any source.

Plus - To help you stay healthy, use:

Preventive Care

100% coverage for nationally recommended services. Included are the preventive care services that meet the requirements of federal and state law, including certain screenings, immunizations and physician visits.

Preventive Care

No deductions from the HSA or out-of-pocket costs for you as long as you receive your preventive care from an in-network provider. If you choose to go to an out-of-network provider, your deductible or Traditional Health Coverage benefits will apply.

Plus -

Your Bridge Responsibility

The Bridge is an amount you pay out of your pocket until you meet your annual deductible responsibility.

Your Bridge amount will vary depending on how many of your HSA dollars, if any, you choose to spend to help you meet your annual deductible responsibility. If you contribute HSA dollars up to the amount of your deductible and use them, your Bridge will equal \$0.

HSA dollars spent on covered services plus your Bridge Responsibility add up to your annual deductible responsibility.

Health Account + Bridge = Deductible

Bridge

Your Bridge responsibility will vary.

Annual Deductible Responsibility in Network and Out of Network Providers

\$2,000 individual coverage \$4,000 family coverage

If needed -

Traditional Health Coverage

Your Traditional Health Coverage begins after you have met your Bridge responsibility.

Additional protection:

For your protection, the total amount you spend out of your pocket is limited. Once you spend that amount, the plan pays 100% of the cost for covered services for the remainder of the plan year.

Traditional Health Coverage

After your Bridge, the plan pays: 100% for in-network providers

80% for out-of-network providers

Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum In-Network Providers:

\$2,000 individual coverage \$4,000 family coverage Out-of-Network Providers: \$4,000 individual coverage \$8,000 family coverage

Your annual out-of-pocket maximum consists of funds you spend from your HSA, your Bridge responsibility and your coinsurance amounts.

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.

2019-2023 CBA City and Local 1165 Page 51



Lumenos HSA Plan Summary



Tools and Personalized Services

You will have access to our award-winning online health site and the following programs to help you reach your health potential:

Future Moms: Individualized obstetric support for expectant high-risk and non-high-risk mothers.

Healthy Lifestyles Online: All covered adults age 18 and over can join the program, complete the Well-Being Assessment and set up a Well-Being Plan.

Enroll in ConditionCare: Disease management for prevalent, high-cost conditions (asthma, diabetes, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, coronary artery disease and heart failure) Members who have more than one health problem will enroll in one combined program — not separate ones for each condition.

Graduate from ConditionCare: - There's no limit to the number of family members that can graduate from the program.. Members who have more than one health problem will graduate from one combined program — not separate ones for each condition.

Summary of Covered Services

Preventive Care

Anthem's Lumenos HSA plan covers preventive services recommended by the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force, the American Cancer Society, the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) and the American Academy of Pediatrics. The Preventive Care benefit includes screening tests, immunizations and counseling services designed to detect and treat medical conditions to prevent avoidable premature injury, illness and death.

All preventive services received from an in-network provider are covered at 100%, are not deducted from your HSA and do not apply to your deductible. If you see an out-of-network provider, then your deductible or out-of-network coinsurance responsibility will apply.

The following is a list of covered preventive care services:

Well Baby and Well Child Preventive Care

Office Visits through age 18; including preventive vision exams.

Screening Tests for vision, hearing, and lead exposure. Also includes pelvic exam, Pap test and contraceptive management for females who are age 18, or have been sexually active.

Immunizations: Hepatitis A Hepatitis B Diphtheria, Tetanus, Pertussis (DtaP) Varicella (chicken pox) Influenza - flu shot Pneumococcal Conjugate (pneumonia) Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) - cervical cancer H. Influenza type b Polio Measles, Mumps, Rubella (MMR)

Adult Preventive Care

Office Visits after age 18; including preventive vision exams.

Screening Tests for vision and hearing, coronary artery disease. colorectal cancer, prostate cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis. Also includes mammograms, as well as pelvic exams, Pap test and contraceptive management.

Immunizations:

Hepatitis A Hepatitis B Diphtheria, Tetanus, Pertussis (DtaP) Varicella (chicken pox) Influenza - flu shot Pneumococcal Conjugate (pneumonia) Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) - cervical cancer

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.



Lumenos HSA Plan Summary



Summary of Covered Services (Continued)

Medical Care

Anthem's Lumenos HSA plan covers a wide range of medical services to treat an illness or injury. You can use your available HSA funds to pay for these covered services. Once you spend up to your deductible amount for covered services, you will have Traditional Health Coverage available to help pay for additional covered services.

The following is a summary of covered medical services under Anthem's Lumenos HSA plan:

- · Physician Office Visits
- Inpatient Hospital Services
- Outpatient Surgery Services
- Diagnostic X-rays/Lab Tests
- Emergency Hospital Services
- Inpatient and Outpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services
- Maternity Care
- · Chiropractic Care
- Prescription Drugs
- · Home health care and hospice care
- · Physical, Speech and Occupational Therapy Services
- Durable Medical Equipment

Some covered services may have limitations or other restrictions. With Anthem's Lumenos HSA plan, the following services are limited:

- Skilled nursing facility services limited to 120 days per member per calendar year.
- Home Health care services limited to 200 visits per member per calendar year.
- Inpatient rehabilitative services limited to 100 days per member per calendar year.
- PT/OT/ST and chiropractic services limited to a combined total of 50 visits per member per calendar year.
- Inpatient hospitalizations require authorizations.
- Coverage for Surgical Treatment of Morbid Obesity is excluded.
- Members are required to use Mail Order for maintenance drugs following 3 fills at Retail.
- Your Lumenos HSA plan includes an unlimited lifetime maximum for in- and out-of-network services.
- * For a complete list of exclusions and limitations, please reference your Certificate of Coverage.

This summary of benefits has been updated to comply with federal and state requirements, including applicable provisions of the recently enacted federal health care reform laws. As we receive additional guidance and clarification on the new health care reform laws from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Department of Labor and Internal Revenue Service, we may be required to make additional changes to this summary of benefits.



Lumenos HSA Plan Summary

Lumenos

This summary is a brief outline of the benefits and coverage provided under the Lumenos plan. It is not intended to be a complete list of the benefits of the plan. This summary is for a full year in the Lumenos plan. If you join the plan mid-year or have a qualified change of status, your actual benefit levels may vary.

Additional limitations and exclusions may apply.





In Connecticut, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of Anthem Health Plans, Inc. In New Hampshire Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, Inc. In Maine, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc., Independent licensees of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. © Registered marks Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. Description (Constitution) (Co

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.

plan would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this plan (called the premium) will The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health plan. The SBC shows you how you and the

copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined terms see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/ or call (800) of covetage, https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms 922-6621 to request a copy.

	Important Questions	Answers	Why This Matters:
	What is the overall	\$2,000/single or \$4,000/family	Generally, you must pay all of the costs from providers up to the deductible amount before
	<u>deductible</u> ?	for In-Network Providers.	this plan begins to pay. If you have other family members on the policy the overall family
201		\$2,000/single or \$4,000/family for Out-of-Network Providers	deductible must be met before the plan begins to pay.
9-20	Are there services	Yes. Preventive care for In-	This plan extransional formation of the second seco
23 (covered before you	Network Providers.	But a consument of consumer may apply Hot example this plan consumer to the consumer than the consumer of the consumer than the consumer that consumer the consumer than the consumer than the consumer than the consumer than the construction of the
BA P	meet your deductible?		services without cost-sharing and before you meet your deductible. See a list of covered
City age			preventive services at https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/.
y an 55	Are there other	No.	You don't have to meet deductibles for specific services.
a L	deductibles for		
oca	specific services?		
. 11	What is the out-of-	\$2,000/single or \$4,000/family	The out-of-bocket limit is the most vou could have in a year for covered services. If you have
vJ	? pocket limit for this	for In-Network Providers.	other family members in this plan the overvall family out of poolest limit must be mot
	<u>plan</u> ?	\$4,000/single or \$8,000/family	Serve ration, and the plant, the Overall failury Out Or Proceed milit miles De met.
<u></u>		for Out-of-Network Providers.	「「「「「「」」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「」では、「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、「「」」というでは、
<u>, </u>	What is not included	Premiums, Balance-Billing	Even though you pay these expenses, they don't count toward the out-of-nocket limit
	in the out-of-pocket	charges, and Health Care this	
	limit?	plan doesn't cover.	
	Will you pay less if	Yes, Century Preferred. See	This plan uses a provider network. You will pay less if you use a provider in the plan's
	you use a <u>network</u>	www.anthem.com or call (800)	network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive
	provider?	922-6621 for a list of network	a hill from a hyroxider for the difference hetween the proxider's charge and what many him
		providers.	pays (balance billing) Be awate vonit network provider might use an out-of-network provider
			for some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before you get services.
	Do you need a reterral	No.	You can see the specialist you choose without a referral.
	to see a <u>specialist</u> ?	- The state of the	



All copayment and coinsurance costs shown in this chart are after your deductible has been met, if a deductible applies.

* For more information about limitations and exceptions, see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso.

Physician/surgeon fees	Mary Mary	y		What You Will Pay	Will Eay	
Physician/surgeon fees		Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
If you need Outpatient services Office Visit perbavioral health, behavioral health, professional behavioral health, professional abuse services Outpatient services Office visits Office visits If you are pregnant pregnant pregnant pregnant or bary professional pregnant or bary services Office visits 0% coinsurance If you need help recovering or have special health needs Ababilitation services 0% coinsurance If your child Durable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance Ow coinsurance	and the second		Physician/surgeon fees	0% coinsurance	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	none
Hyou need Outpatient services Owe coinsurance	ammeetineli		A second	Office Visit	Office Visit	Office Visit
menial health, behavioral health, corsubstance or substance abuse services Inpatient services Office visits Childbirth/delivery professional services Childbirth/delivery facility services Home health care Office visits Office visits Childbirth/delivery facility office visits Childbirth/delivery facility Office visits Office	overso destill	If you need	Outbatient services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
or substance abuse services Inpatient services Office visits Childbirth/delivery professional services Childbirth/delivery facility Childbirth/delivery facility Services Childbirth/delivery facility Services Home health care Office visits Childbirth/delivery facility Services Home health care Office visits Childbirth/delivery facility Services Habilitation services Office visits Childbirth/delivery facility Services Habilitation services Office visits Office	APRICA STATE	mental health,		Other Outpatient	Other Outpatient	Other Outpatient
abuse services Inpatient services 0% coinsurance Office visits Childbirth/delivery professional 0% coinsurance services Childbirth/delivery facility 0% coinsurance Rehabilitation services 0% coinsurance Rehabilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Rehabilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Office visits Home health care 0% coinsurance Office visits Hospice services 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Office visits Hospice services 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable services 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable services 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable services 0% coinsurance Office visits Ourable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Ourable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Ourable visits Ourable visits Ourable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Ourable visits Oura	204230#\$\\$	Denavioral nealth,		0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
If you are pregnant Office visits 0% coinsurance Pregnant Childbirth/delivery professional services 0% coinsurance Childbirth/delivery facility services 0% coinsurance Home health care recovering or have recovering or health needs 0% coinsurance Other special health needs 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance Outable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance Outable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal or Children's dantal or Not covered Or coinsurance Not covered		or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	0% <u>coinsurance</u>	20% coinsurance	Failure to obtain pre-authorization may result in non-coverage or reduced
Childbirth/delivery professional consurance Childbirth/delivery professional consurance Childbirth/delivery facility 0% coinsurance Childbirth/delivery facility 0% coinsurance Childbirth/delivery facility 0% coinsurance Home health care 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsura	g.		Office minimum			Denents.
If you are services Childbirth/delivery professional 0% coinsurance Pregnant Services Childbirth/delivery facility 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance Hospice s	==-\frac{1}{2}		OTHER VISITS	U% <u>coinsutance</u>	20% coinsurance	Failure to obtain pre-authorization
Childbirth/delivery facility services Home health care Rehabilitation services If you need help recovering or have other special health needs Durable medical equipment Hospice services Ow coinsurance Ow coinsurance Ow coinsurance Ow coinsurance Hospice services Children's eye exam Not covered Children's eye exam Children's dantal chark was an Not covered	2010 4		Childbirth/delivery professional services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits. Maternity care may include
Home health care 0% coinsurance Rehabilitation services 0% coinsurance If you need help recovering or have other special Skilled nursing care 0% coinsurance If your child Durable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance If your child Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal cheels are cate Not covered	144 cm		Childbirth/delivery facility services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	tests and services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound.)
Rehabilitation services 0% coinsurance Habilitation services 0% coinsurance If you need help recovering or have other special health needs Durable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services Children's eye exam Not covered Children's glasses Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered Children's dantal chart are coinsurance Children's eye exam Not covered			Home health care	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	200 visits/benefit period.
If you need help recovering or have other special Skilled nursing cate 0% coinsurance other special health needs Durable medical equipment 0% coinsurance Hospice services 0% coinsurance If your child Children's eye exam Not covered recovering or have special health needs Not covered Accordance of the control cheeks are consulted to the covered of the covered			Rehabilitation services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	The state of the s
If you need help Skilled nursing care 0% coinsurance other special Durable medical equipment 0% coinsurance health needs Hospice services 0% coinsurance Hyour child Children's eye exam Not covered needs dental or Children's glasses Not covered Children's dantal chart, chart			Habilitation services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	*See Therapy Services section.
Hospice services Children's eye exam Children's glasses Children's dental check and Not covered Children's dental check and Not covered Children's dental check and Not covered		If you need help recovering or have other special	Skilled nursing care	0% coinsurance	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	120 days limit/benefit period. Failure to obtain pre-authorization may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
Hospice services 0% coinsutance hild Children's eye exam Not covered Children's glasses Not covered Children's dental check are	WEST OF	health needs	Durable medical equipment	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
hild Children's glasses Not covered children's glasses Not covered Children's dantal charle unamental charle unamenta			Hospice services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	Failure to obtain pre-authorization may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
children's glasses Not covered	::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	If your child	Children's eye exam	Not covered	Not covered	
Children's dental about was		needs dental or	Children's glasses	Not covered	Not covered	"See Vision Services section.
TAOL COVERED	410/7/2014 410/7/2014	eye cate	Children's dental check-up	Not covered	Not covered	*See Dental Services section.

* For more information about limitations and exceptions, see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso.

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other excluded services.)

Routine foot care unless you have been diagnosed with diabetes. Cosmetic surgery

Weight loss programs

Dental care (adult)

- Long- term care Bariatric surgery
- Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see your plan document.)
 - Acupuncture

Hearing aids

Private-duty nursing

- Infertility treatment

Routine eye care (adult)

- Chiroptactic care 50 visits/benefit period.
- Most coverage provided outside the United Stateswww.bcbs.com/bluecardworldwide

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those agencies is: Department of Labor's Employee Benefits Security Administration at or. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace. For more information about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318-2596.

documents also provide complete information to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan this notice, or assistance, contact:

ATTN: Grievances and Appeals, P.O. Box 1038, North Haven, CT 06473-4201

Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

If you don't have Minimum Essential Coverage for a month, you'll have to make a payment when you file your tax return unless you qualify for an exemption from the requirement that you have health coverage for that month.

Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

* For more information about limitations and exceptions. see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso.

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

About these Coverage Examples:



\$2,000 % %0

shev room visit and follow up care)

Primary care physician office visits (including disease education) Diagnostic tests (blood work) Prescription drugs	ıclading	Emergency room care (including medical supplies) Diagnostic test (x-ray) Durable medical equipment (crutches) Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)	(52
Durable medical equipment (glucose meter) Total Example Cost	eter) \$7,460		\$2,010
In this example, Joe would pay:		In this example, Mia would pay:	
<u>Cost Sharing</u>		Cost Sharing	180.11
<u>Deductibles</u>	\$1,198	Deductibles \$1,9	\$1,925
Copayments	\$0	Copayments	\$0
Coinsurance	\$	Coinsutance	\$0
What isn't covered		What isn't covered	
Limits or exclusions	\$21	Limits of exclusions	0\$
The total Joe would pay is	\$1,219	The total Mia would pay is \$1,9	\$1,925

Q Q

\$60 \$2,060

What isn't covered

Copayments Coinsurance

Deductibles

The total Peg would pay is

Limits or exclusions

\$2,000

\$12,840

In this example, Peg would pay:

Total Example Cost

Local 1165

Cost Sharing





Lumenos HRA Plan Summary

The Lumenos® HRA plan is designed to empower you to take control of your health, as well as the dollars you spend on your health care. This plan gives you the benefits you would receive from a typical health plan, plus health care dollars to spend your way. And you'll have access to personalized services and online tools to help you reach your health potential.

City of New Britain

Your Lumenos HRA Plan

First - Use your HRA to pay for covered services: Health Reimbursement Account

With the Lumenos Health Reimbursement Account (HRA), you receive an annual allocation from your employer in your HRA. Money in your HRA is used to help meet your annual deductible responsibility.

HRA Allocation from your employer

\$1,000 individual coverage \$2,000 family coverage

The maximum amount of unused dollars that can roll over year to year is \$3,600 individual / \$7,200 family.

Plus - To help you stay healthy, use:

Preventive Care

100% coverage for nationally recommended services. Included are the preventive care services that meet the requirements of federal and state law, including certain screenings, immunizations and physician visits.

Preventive Care

No deductions from the HRA or out-of-pocket costs for you as long as you receive your preventive care from an in-network provider. If you choose to go to an out-of-network provider your deductible or traditional health coverage benefits will apply.

Then -

Your Bridge

After you use all of the money in your HRA, you then pay a Bridge amount out of your pocket until you meet your annual deductible responsibility. Your HRA dollars plus your Bridge amount add up to your annual deductible responsibility.

Health Account + Bridge = Deductible

Bridge

Your bridge responsibility will vary

Annual Deductible Responsibility
In Network and Out of Network Providers

\$2,000 individual coverage \$4,000 family coverage

If Needed -

Traditional Health Coverage

Your Traditional Health Coverage begins after you have paid your Bridge amount.

Traditional Health Coverage

After your bridge, the plan pays:

100% for in-network providers

80% for out-of-network providers

Additional Protection

For your protection, the total amount you spend out of your pocket is limited. Once you spend that amount, the plan pays 100% of the cost for covered services for the remainder of the plan year.

Annual Out-of-Pocket Maximum

In-Network Providers
\$ 2,000 individual coverage
\$ 4,000 family coverage
\$ 8,000 family coverage

Your annual out-of-pocket maximum consists of funds you spend from your HRA, your Bridge responsibility and your copay and coinsurance amounts.

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.

Anthem. 🗬

Lumenos HRA Plan Summary



Healthy Rewards Program

You will have access to our award-winning online health site and the following programs to help you reach your health potential:

Future Moms: Individualized obstetric support for expectant high-risk and non-high-risk mothers.

Healthy Lifestyles Online: All covered adults age 18 and over can join the program, complete the Well-Being Assessment and set up a Well-Being

Enroll in ConditionCare: Disease management for prevalent, high-cost conditions (asthma, diabetes, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, coronary artery disease and heart failure) Members who have more than one health problem will enroll in one combined program — not separate ones for each condition.

Graduate from ConditionCare: - There's no limit to the number of family members that can graduate from the program.. Members who have more than one health problem will graduate from one combined program — not separate ones for each condition.

Summary of Covered Services

Preventive Care

Anthem's Lumenos HRA plan covers preventive services recommended by the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force, the American Cancer Society, the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) and the American Academy of Pediatrics. The Preventive Care benefit includes screening tests, immunizations and counseling services designed to detect and treat medical conditions to prevent avoidable premature injury, illness and death.

All preventive services received from an in-network provider are covered at 100%, are not deducted from your HRA and do not apply to your deductible. If you see an out-of-network provider, then your deductible or out-of-network coinsurance responsibility will apply.

The following is a list of covered preventive care services:

Well Baby and Well Child Preventive Care

Office Visits through age 18; including preventive vision exams.

Screening Tests for vision, hearing, and lead exposure. Also includes pelvic exam, Pap test and contraceptive management for females who are age 18, or have been sexually active.

Immunizations:

Hepatitis A Hepatitis B Diphtheria, Tetanus, Pertussis (DtaP) Varicella (chicken pox) Influenza - flu shot Pneumococcal Conjugate (pneumonia) Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) - cervical cancer H. Influenza type b Polio Measles, Mumps, Rubella (MMR)

Adult Preventive Care

Office Visits after age 18; including preventive vision exams.

Screening Tests for vision and hearing, coronary artery disease, colorectal cancer, prostate cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis. Also includes mammograms, as well as pelvic exams, Pap test and contraceptive management.

Immunizations:

Hepatitis A Hepatitis B Diphtheria, Tetanus, Pertussis (DtaP) Varicella (chicken pox) Influenza - flu shot Pneumococcal Conjugate (pneumonia) Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) - cervical cancer

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.



Lumenos HRA Plan Summary



Summary of Covered Services (Continued)

Medical Care

Anthem's Lumenos HRA plan covers a wide range of medical services to treat an illness or injury. You can use your available HRA funds to pay for these covered services. Once you spend up to your deductible amount for covered services, you will have Traditional Health Coverage available to help pay for additional covered services.

The following is a summary of covered medical services under Anthem's Lumenos HRA plan:

- Physician Office Visits
- · Inpatient Hospital Services
- Outpatient Surgery Services
- Diagnostic X-rays/Lab Tests
- · Emergency Hospital Services
- Inpatient and Outpatient Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services
- · Durable Medical Equipment including Orthotics

- Maternity Care
- · Chiropractic Care
- · Prescription Drugs
- · Home health care and hospice care
- Physical, Speech and Occupational Therapy Services
- Oral surgery to remove an impacted tooth, cutting procedures on gum or mouth tissues to treat disease and anesthesia used during surgery

Some covered services may have limitations or other restrictions. With Anthem's Lumenos HRA plan, the following services are limited:

- Skilled nursing facility services limited to 120 days per member per calendar year.
- Home Health care services subject to a 200 visit limit per member per calendar year.
- Inpatient rehabilitative services limited to 100 days per member per calendar year.
- Physical, speech and occupational therapy and chiropractic services limited to a combined total of 50 visits per member per calendar year.
- Some restrictions may apply to infertility services.
- Inpatient hospitalizations require authorizations.
- Coverage for Surgical Treatment of Morbid Obesity is excluded.
- Your Lumenos HRA plan includes an unlimited lifetime maximum.
- · Members are required to use Mail Order for maintenance drugs following 3 fills at Retail.
- * For a complete list of exclusions and limitations, please reference your Certificate of Coverage.

This summary of benefits has been updated to comply with federal and state requirements, including applicable provisions of the recently enacted federal health care reform laws. As we receive additional guidance and clarification on the new health care reform laws from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Department of Labor and Internal Revenue Service, we may be required to make additional changes to this summary of benefits.

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.



Lumenos HRA Plan Summary

Lumenos

This summary is a brief outline of the benefits and coverage provided under the Lumenos plan. It is not intended to be a complete list of the benefits of the plan. This summary is for a full year in the Lumenos plan. If you join the plan mid-year or have a qualified change of status, your actual benefit levels may vary.

Additional limitations and exclusions may apply.





In Connecticut, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of Anthem Health Plans, inc. in New Hampshire Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc., Independent licensess of the

Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. © Registered marks Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. DumenOS is a registered trademark.

If you have questions, please call toll-free 1-888-224-4896.

plan would share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this plan (called the premium) will The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health plan. The SBC shows you how you and the be provided separately. This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms

copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined terms see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/ or call (800) of coverage, https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, 922-6621 to request a copy.

\$4,000/family for Out-of- Network Providers. This HRA account reimburses you for certain deductibles and coinsurance amounts up to \$1,000/ individual or \$2,000/family. Yes. Preventive care for In- Network Providers. No. \$2,000/ individual or \$2,000/ individual or \$2,000/family for In-Network Providers. \$4,000/ individual or \$8,000/family for Out-of- Network Providers. d Premiums, Balance-Billing charges, and Health Care this plan doesn't cover.
Will you pay less ifYes, Century Preferred. SeeThis plan uses a provider network.This plan uses a provider network.You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive a provider of network.you use a network provider, and you might receive provider?Distriction a provider for the difference between the provider's charge and what your plan

1

All copayment and coinsurance costs shown in this chart are after your deductible has been met, if a deductible applies.

			What You Will Pay	Will Pay	
<u> </u>	Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
		Primary care visit to treat an injury or illness	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
	Ifyou visit a	<u>Specialist</u> visit	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
2019-2023 CB	nealth care provider's office ot clinic	<u>Preventive care/screening/</u> immunization	No charge	20% coinsurance	You may have to pay for services that aren't preventive. Ask your <u>provider</u> if the services needed are preventive. Then check what your <u>plan</u> will pay for.
A C Pag			Lab – Office	Lab – Office	Lab – Office
ity a e 65		Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
ind]	If you have a test	work)	X-Ray — Office	X-Ray – Office	X-Ray – Office
Loc		7777	U% comsurance	20% coinsurance	none
cal 1		Imaging (CT/PET scans, MRIs)	0% coinsurance	20% coinsutance	none
165	If you need drugs to treat your illness or	Tier 1 - Typically Generic	0% coinsurance (retail) and 0% coinsurance (home delivery)	20% coinsurance (retail) and 20% coinsurance (home delivery)	
	condition More information about prescription	Tier 2 - Typically Preferred / Brand	0% coinsurance (retail) and 0% coinsurance (home delivery)	20% <u>coinsurance</u> (retail) and 20% <u>coinsurance</u> (home delivery)	
	available at http://www.anthe	Tier 3 - Typically Non-Preferred / <u>Specialty Drugs</u>	0% <u>coinsurance</u> (retail) and 0% <u>coinsurance</u> (home delivery)	20% coinsurance (retail) and 20% coinsurance (home delivery)	*See Prescription Drug section
	formation/ National	Tier 4 - Typically <u>Specialty</u> Drugs	0% coinsurance (retail) and 0% coinsurance (home delivery)	20% <u>coinsurance</u> (retail) and 20% <u>coinsurance</u> (home delivery)	
	If you have outpatient surgery	Facility fee (e.g., ambulatory surgery center)	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none

* For more information about limitations and exceptions, see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdps/aso.

Common Medical Event	Services You May Need	What You Will Pay In-Network Provider (You will pay the least)	Will Pay Out-of-Network Provider (You will pay the most)	Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important Information
	Physician/surgeon fees	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
Programme 3	Emergency room care	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
in you need immediate medical attention	Emergency medical transportation	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
	<u>Urgent care</u>	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
If you have a hospital stay	Facility fee (e.g., hospital room)	0% <u>coinsurance</u>	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Failure to obtain pre-certification may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
	Physician/surgeon fees	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
		Office Visit	Office Visit	Office Visit
If you need mental health,	Outpatient services	0% coinsurance Other Outpatient	20% consurance Other Outpatient	Other Outpatient
behavioral health,		U% <u>comsurance</u>	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	amenum TODE amountains
or substance abuse services	Inpatient services	0% <u>coinsurance</u>	20% coinsurance	Failure to obtain pre-certification may tesult in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
	Office visits	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	Maternity care may include tests and
If you are	Childbirth/delivery professional services	0% coinsurance	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	services described elsewhere in the SBC (i.e. ultrasound.) Failure to obtain
	Childbirth/delivery facility services	0% <u>coinsurance</u>	20% coinsurance	pre-certification may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
	Home health care	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	200 visits/benefit period.
	Rehabilitation services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	S C X
	Habilitation services	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	"see Interapy services section
If you need help recovering or have other special	Skilled nursing care	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	120 days limit/benefit period. Failure to obtain pre-certification may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
health needs	Durable medical equipment	0% coinsurance	20% coinsurance	none
	Hospice services	0% coinsurance	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	Failure to obtain pre-certification may result in non-coverage or reduced benefits.
If your child	Children's eye exam	0% <u>coinsurance</u>	20% <u>coinsurance</u>	X Control Common Control
needs dental or	Children's glasses	Not covered	Not covered	Oce Vision Services section
eye care	Children's dental check-up	Not covered	Not covered	*See Dental Services section

* For more information about limitations and exceptions, see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdbs/aso.

Excluded Services & Other Covered Services:

Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other excluded services.)

Cosmetic surgery

Weight loss programs Dental care (adult)

Bariatric surgery Long- term care

- Routine foot care unless you have been diagnosed with diabetes

Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn't a complete list. Please see your plan document.)

Acupuncture

Hearing aids

Infertility treatment

Chiropractic care 50 visits/benefit period.

Most coverage provided outside the United

Stateswww.bcbs.com/bluecardworldwide

Private-duty nursing •

Routine eye care (adult)

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those www.ccijo.cms.gov. Other coverage options may be available to you too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance agencies is: Department of Health and Human Services, Center for Consumer Information and Insurance Oversight, at 1-877-267-2323 x61565 or Marketplace. For more information about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318-2596.

documents also provide complete information to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan this notice, or assistance, contact: 2019-2023 CBA City and Local 1165

ATTN: Grievances and Appeals, P.O. Box 1038, North Haven, CT 06473-4201

Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes

If you don't have Minimum Essential Coverage for a month, you'll have to make a payment when you file your tax return unless you qualify for an exemption from the requirement that you have health coverage for that month.

Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes

If your plan doesn't meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace.

-To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section.

Page 67

^{*} For more information about limitations and exceptions, see plan or policy document at https://eoc.anthem.com/eocdbs/aso,

About these Coverage Examples:



This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this plan might cover medical care. Your actual costs will

be different depending on the actual cate you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> charge, and many other factors. Focus on the <u>cost</u> <u>sharing</u> amounts (<u>deductibles, copayments</u> and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded services</u> under the <u>plan</u> . Use this information to compare the <u>portion</u> of costs you might pay under different health <u>plans</u> . Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage.	Mia's Simple Fracture well- up care)	\$2,000 The plan's overall deductible 0% Specialist coinsurance 0% Hospital (facility) coinsurance 0% Other coinsurance
cate you receive, the prices your <u>providers</u> ments and <u>coinsurance</u>) and <u>excluded servic</u> r different health <u>plans</u> . Please note these co	Managing Joe's type 2 Diabetes (a vear of routine in-network care of a well-controlled condition)	 The plan's overall deductible Specialist coinsurance Hospital (facility) coinsurance Other coinsurance
be different depending on the actual sharing amounts (deductibles, copay portion of costs you might pay unde	Peg is Having a Baby (9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a hospital delivery)	■ The plan's overall deductible\$2,000■ Specialist coinsurance0%■ Hospital (facility) coinsurance0%■ Other coinsurance0%

ervices This EXAMPLE event includes service like:	820	Diagnostic test $(x-ray)$	and the state of confidence of down
This EXAMPLE event includes services like:	rimary care physician office visits (includi	isease education)	Disonnetic tests (bland morb)

Rehabilitation services (physical therapy)

Prescription drugs

Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work)

Specialist visit (anesthesia)

Total Example Cost

In this example, Peg would pay:

Cost Sharing

Deductibles Copayments Coinsurance What isn't covered

The total Peg would pay is

Limits or exclusions

Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services

2019-2023 CBA City and Local 1165 Page 68

Specialist office visits (prenatal care)

This EXAMPLE event includes services

%%

\$2,000 %0

Nolle

	Durable medical equipment (glucose meter)	Vallotypum valloni	
\$12,738	Total Example Cost	\$7,400	Total Example Cost
	In this example, Joe would pay:		In this example, Mia would pa
	Cost Sharing		Cost Sharing
\$2,000	<u>Deductibles</u>	\$1,198	Deductibles
\$0	Copayments	0\$	Copayments
\$0	Coinsurance	0\$	Coinsurance
	What isn't covered		What isn't covered
09\$	Limits or exclusions	\$21	Limits or exclusions
\$2,060	The total Joe would pay is	\$1,219	The total Mia would pay is

\$1,925

\$1,925

88

\$1,925

9



Century Preferred \$30/\$100/\$50/\$100

Benefits at a Glance for Retired Police = #001097-286

Century Preferred is a preferred provider organization (PPO) plan.

	In Network You pay:	Out-of-Network You pay:
Office Visit (OV) Copayment	\$30	Deductible & Coinsurance
Hospital (HSP) Copayment	\$100	Deductible & Coinsurance
Urgent Care (UR) Copayment	\$50	Not covered
Emergency Room (ER) Copayment - waived if admitted	\$50	\$50
Outpatient Surgery (OS) Copayment	\$100	Deductible & Coinsurance
Annual Deductible (individual/2-member family/3+ member family)	Not applicable	\$200\$400/\$400
Coinsurance		20% after deductible up to
Cost Share Maximum (individual/2-member family/3+ member family)	\$6,600/\$13,200/ \$13,200	\$500\$1,000/\$1,000
Lifetime Maximum	Unlimited	Unlimited

PREVENTIVE CARE

Well child care*	NO Copayment	Deductible &
Periodic, routine health examinations*	NO Copayment	Coinsurance
Routine eye exams - one exam every calendar year superseded by vision rider	NO Copayment	
Routine OB/GYN visits — one exam per year	NO Copayment	
Mammography*	No Charge	
Hearing screening - covered once every calendar years	NO Copayment	

MEDICAL CARE

Primary care office visits	OV Copayment	Deductible &
Specialist consultations	OV Copayment	Coinsurance
OB/GYN care	OV Copayment	
Maternity care — initial visit subject to copayment, no charge thereafter	OV Copayment	
Laboratory	No charge	
X-ray and Diagnostic Testing	No charge	
Allergy Services		
Office visits/testing	OV Copayment	
Injections—80 within 3 years	No Charge	

HOSPITAL CARE - Prior authorization required.

Semi-private room	HSP Copayment	Deductible &
Maternity and newborn care	HSP Copayment	Coinsurance
Skilled nursing facility — up to 120 days per calendar year	HSPCopayment	
Rehabilitative services — up to 60 days per person per calendar year	NO Copayment	
Outpatient surgery — in a hospital or surgi-center	OS Copayment	



EMERGENCY CARE

Walk-in centers	OV Copayment	Deductible &
		Coinsurance
Urgent care – at participating centers only	UR Copayment	Not covered
Emergency care — co-payment	ER Copayment	ER Copayment
Ambulance –	covered	covered

OTHER HEALTH CARE

Outpatient rehabilitative services	NO Copayment	Deductible &
50 visit maximum for PT, OT, ST . per calendar year - excess covered as out of network		Coinsurance
Prosthetic Devices	Unlimited	
Durable Medical Equipment	Unlimited	
Infertility – State Mandate Age and Cycle Restrictions Apply	Copayment	Deductible &
		Coinsurance
Surgical Treatment of Morbid Obesity	Not Covered	Not Covered

MENTAL HEALTH/SUBSTANCE ABUSE CARE

Inpatient	HSP Copayment	Deductible &
Outpatient/office visits	OV Copayment	Coinsurance

* Schedule of health examinations:

1 exam every year

*Mammography:

1 baseline age 35 –39 years

1 screening per year age 40+

Additional exams when medically necessary

Note: In situations where the member is responsible for obtaining the necessary prior authorization and fails to do so, benefits may be reduced or denied.

Please refer to the *SpecialOffers@Anthem* brochure in your enrollment kit for information on the discounts we offer on health-related products and services.

This does not constitute your health plan or insurance policy. It is only a general description of the plan. The following are examples of services NOT covered by your Century Preferred Health Plan. Please refer to your Certificate/Evidence of Coverage/Summary Booklet for more details: Cosmetic surgeries and services; custodial care; genetic testing; hearing aids; refractive eye surgery; services and supplies related to, as well as the performance of, sex change operations; surgical and non-surgical services related to TMJ syndrome; travel expenses; vision therapy; services rendered prior to your contract effective date or rendered after your contract termination date; and workers' compensation.

GASTRIC BYPASS SURGERY EXCLUDED

A product of Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield serving residents and businesses in the State of Connecticut.



City of New Britain Retired Police #001097-286

CENTURY PREFERRED MANAGED RX, 3 TIER Benefits at a Glance

\$10 COPAYMENT GENERIC DRUGS \$20 COPAYMENT LISTED BRAND-NAME DRUGS \$30 COPAYMENT NON-LISTED BRAND-NAME DRUGS Unlimited Annual Maximum

How To Use 3-Tier Managed Rx

3-Tier Managed Rx has three different levels (or "tiers") of copayments, depending on the type of prescription drug you purchase (see the chart below for details). Your copayments will be lower when you use generic or brand-name medications that are on our list of preferred prescription drugs. The medications on this list are selected for their quality, safety and cost-effectiveness. You'll still have coverage brand-name drugs that are not on the list, but your copayment will be higher.

Talk to your provider about using generic drugs or listed brand-name drugs. It's a simple way to save out-of-pocket expenses.

Copayments and Day Supplies

• You will be responsible for **one** copayment when purchasing a **30-day supply** of prescription drugs from a retail pharmacy.

You'll be responsible for two copayments when purchasing up to a 90-day supply of maintenance drugs through the voluntary mail-service program (see chart for details).

Generic Drugs Have the Lowest Copayment

Generic Drugs Have the	Chowest Copayment	Your copayment:
Tier 1: Generic drugs	The term "generic" refers to a prescription drug that is not protected by a trademark. It is required to meet the same bioequivalency test as the original brand-name drug. Tier 1 copayment applies.	\$10
Tier 2: Listed brand-name drugs	The term "listed brand-name" refers to a brand-name prescription drug that is on Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield's list of preferred prescription drugs. Tier 2 copayment applies.	\$20
Tier 3: Non-listed brand-name drugs	The term "non-listed braud-name" refers to a brand-name prescription drug that is not on Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield's list of preferred prescription drugs. Tier 3 copayment applies.	\$30
Mail Service	(Two) copayment(s) per 90	\$20, \$40, \$60
Annual Maximum	Per member per calendar year	Unlimited

Generic Substitution

Prescriptions will be filled with the generic equivalent when there is one available. Exception: If your doctor indicates "Dispense as Written." In this case you will receive the brand-name drug—and you will be responsible for the applicable listed brand or non-listed brand copayment. NOTE: If your doctor does *not* indicate "Dispense as Written," you will be responsible for the applicable listed brand or non-listed brand-name copayment as well as the difference in cost between the generic and listed brand or non-listed brand name drug.

Voluntary Mail-Service Program

Express Scripts, our voluntary mail-service drug program, can save you time and expense if you regularly take one or more types of maintenance drugs. You can order up to a **90-day supply** of these medications and have them delivered directly to your home.

Two mail-service copayments will apply as follows: \$20, \$40, \$60

National Pharmacy Network

Members also have access to a network of more than 65,000 retail pharmacies throughout the country. Members may call 1-888-207-4214, to locate a participating pharmacy when traveling outside the state.

Non-Participating Pharmacies

Members who fill prescriptions at a non-participating pharmacy are responsible for payment at the time the prescription is filled. Members must submit claims to Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield for reimbursement, and payment will be sent to the member. Members who use non-participating pharmacies will pay 20% of the in-network allowance, plus the difference between Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield's payment and the pharmacist's actual charge.

Limits and Exclusions

Benefits are limited to no more than a **30-day supply** for covered drugs purchased at a retail pharmacy, and no more than a **90-day supply** for covered drugs purchased by mail service. All prescriptions are subject to the quantity limitations imposed by state and federal statutes.

Benefits for prescription birth control and Sexual Dysfunction medications are optional for groups such as yours. Check with your benefits administrator to find out whether or not you have such benefits.

This is not a legal contract. It is only a general description of the Managed Rx, 3 Tier version. Please consult the Evidence of Coverage or prescription drug rider for a complete description of benefits and exclusions applicable to your coverage.

Blue View VisionsM Mid Plan – City of New Britain July 1, 2020



Welcome to your Blue View Vision plan!

You have many choices when it comes to using your benefits. As a Blue View Vision plan member, you have access to one of the nation's largest vision networks. You may choose from many private practice doctors, local optical stores, and national retail stores including LensCrafters®, Target Optical®, and most Pearle Vision® locations. You may also use your in-network benefits to order eyewear online at Glasses.com and ContactsDirect.com. To locate a participating network eye care doctor or location, log in at anthem.com, or from the home page menu under Care, select Find a Doctor. You may also call member services for assistance at 1-866-723-0515.

Out-of-Network – If you choose to, you may instead receive covered benefits outside of the Blue View Vision network. Just pay in full at the time of service, obtain an itemized receipt, and file a claim for reimbursement up to your maximum out-of-network allowance.

YOUR BLUE VIEW VISION PLAN BENEFITS	IN-NETWORK	OUT-OF-NETWORK	FREQUENCY
Routine Eye Exam			
A comprehensive eye examination	\$0 copay	Up to \$50 allowance	Once every calendar year
Eyeglass Frames			
One pair of eyeglass frames	\$130 allowance, then 20% off any remaining balance	Up to \$64 allowance	Once every calendar year
Eyeglass Lenses (instead of contact lenses)			
One pair of standard plastic prescription lenses: o Single vision lenses o Bifocal lenses o Trifocal lenses o Lenticular lenses	\$20 copay \$20 copay \$20 copay \$20 copay	Up to \$60 allowance Up to \$70 allowance Up to \$90 allowance Up to \$130 allowance	Once every calendar year
Eyeglass Lens Enhancements When obtaining covered eyewear from a Blue View Vision prov	vider, you may choose to add an	y of the following lens enhanc	ements at no extra cost.
 Transitions Lenses (for a child under age 19) Standard polycarbonate (for a child under age 19) Factory scratch coating 	\$0 copay \$0 copay \$0 copay	No allowance when obtained out-of-network	Same as covered eyeglass lenses
Contact Lenses (instead of eyeglass lenses) Contact lens allowance will only be applied toward the first pure be used for subsequent purchases in the same benefit period,	chase of contacts made during a nor can any unused amount be	benefit period. Any unused a carried over to the following be	mount remaining cannot enefit period.
Elective conventional (non-disposable) OR	\$130 allowance, then 15% off any remaining balance	Up to \$125 allowance	
• Elective disposable OR	\$130 allowance (no additional discount)	Up to \$125 allowance	Once every calendar year
Non-elective (medically necessary)	Covered in full	Up to \$225 allowance	

This is a primary vision care benefit intended to cover only routine eye examinations and corrective eyewear. Blue View Vision is for routine eye care only. If you need medical treatment for your eyes, visit a participating eye care doctor from your medical network. Benefits are payable only for expenses incurred while the group and insured person's coverage is in force. This information is intended to be a brief outline of coverage. All terms and conditions of coverage, including benefits and exclusions, are contained in the member's policy, which shall control in the event of a conflict with this overview. This benefit overview is only one piece of your entire enrollment package.

EXCLUSIONS & LIMITATIONS (not a comprehensive list – please refer to the member Certificate of Coverage for a complete list)

Combined Offers. Not to be combined with any offer, coupon, or in-store advertisement.

Excess Amounts. Amounts in excess of covered vision expense. **Sunglasses.** Plano sunglasses and accompanying frames.

Safety Glasses. Safety glasses and accompanying frames. Not Specifically Listed. Services not specifically listed in this plan as covered services. Lost or Broken Lenses or Frames. Any lost or broken lenses or frames are not eligible for replacement unless the insured person has reached his or her normal service interval as indicated in the plan design.

Non-Prescription Lenses. Any non-prescription lenses, eyeglasses or contacts. Plano lenses or lenses that have no refractive power.

Orthoptics. Orthoptics or vision training and any associated supplemental

OPTIONAL SAVINGS AVAILABLE FROM BLUE VIEW VISION IN-NETWORK PROVIDERS ONLY

In-network Member Cost

		(after any applicable copay)
Retinal Imaging - at member's option can be performed	at time of eye exam	Not more than \$39
Eyeglass lens upgrades When obtaining eyewear from a Blue View Vision provider, you may choose to upgrade your new eyeglass lenses at a discounted cost. Eyeglass lens copayment applies.	Transitions lenses (Adults) Standard Polycarbonate (Adults) Tint (Solid and Gradient) UV Coating Progressive Lenses¹ Standard Premium Tier 1 Premium Tier 2 Premium Tier 3 Anti-Reflective Coating² Standard Premium Tier 1 Premium Tier 1 Premium Tier 1	\$75 \$40 \$15 \$15 \$65 \$85 \$95 \$110 \$45 \$57 \$68 20% off retail price
Additional Pairs of Eyeglasses Anytime from any Blue View Vision network provider.	Complete Pair Eyeglass materials purchased separately	40% off retail price 20% off retail price
Eyewear Accessories	 Items such as non-prescription sunglasses, lens cleaning supplies, contact lens solutions, eyeglass cases, etc. 	20% off retail price
Contact lens fit and follow-up A contact lens fitting and up to two follow-up visits are available to you once a comprehensive eye exam has been completed.	Standard contact lens fitting³ Premium contact lens fitting⁴	Up to \$55 10% off retail price
Conventional Contact Lenses	Discount applies to materials only	15% off retail price

Discounts are subject to change without notice. Discounts are not 'covered benefits' under your vision plan and will not be listed in your certificate of coverage. Discounts will be offered from in-network providers except where state law prevents discounting of products and services that are not covered benefits under the plan. Discounts on frames will not apply if the manufacturer has imposed a no discount policy on sales at retail and independent provider locations. Some of our in-network providers include:

INDEPENDENT PROVIDER NETWORK

LENSCRAFTERS'

OPTICAL

GLASSES. Contactsdirect 1800 contacts

LENSCRAFTERS VO OPTICAL

glasses.com

contactsdirect.com

1800contacts,com

lenscrafters.com

targetoptical,com

ADDITIONAL SAVINGS AVAILABLE THROUGH ANTHEM'S SPECIAL OFFERS PROGRAM*

Savings on Items like additional eyewear after your benefits have been used, non-prescription sunglasses, hearing aids and even LASIK laser vision correction surgery are available through a variety of vendors. Just log in at anthem.com, select discounts, then Vision, Hearing & Dental.

OUT-OF-NETWORK

If you choose to receive covered services or purchase covered eyewear from an out-of-network provider, network discounts will not apply and you will be responsible for payment of services and/or eyewear materials at the time of service. Please complete an out-of-network claim form and submit it along with your itemized receipt to the fax number, email address, or mailing address below. To download a claim form, log in at anthem.com, or from the home page menu under Support select Forms, click Change State to choose your state, and then scroll down to Claims and select the Blue View Vision Out-of-Network Claim Form. You may instead call member services at 1-866-723-0515 to request a claim form.

To Fax: 866-293-7373

To Email: oonclaims@eyewearspecialoffers.com

To Mail: Blue View Vision

Attn: OON Claims P.O. Box 8504 Mason, OH 45040-7111

Transitions and the swirl are registered trademarks of Transitions Optical, Inc.

Anthern Blue Cross and Blue Shield is the trade name of. In Connecticut: Anthern Health Plans, Inc. In Maine: Anthern Health Plans of Maine, Inc. In New Hampshire: Anthern Health Plans of New Hampshire and Plans of New Hampshire. administered by Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, Inc. and underwritten by Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Inc. Independent licensess of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. ANTHEM is a registered trademark of Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc. The Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and symbols are registered marks of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association.

Blue View Vision ES

¹ Please ask your provider for his/her recommendation as well as the available progressive brands by tier.

² Please ask your provider for his/her recommendation as well as the available coating brands by tier.

³ Standard fitting includes spherical clear lenses for conventional wear and planned replacement. Examples include but are not limited to disposable and frequent replacement.

⁴ Premium fitting includes all lens designs, materials and specialty fittings other than standard contact lenses. Examples include but are not limited to toric and multifocal.

^{*} Discounts cannot be used in conjunction with your covered benefits.



City of New Britain Flex Dental Plan Group #001097-182,186,282+286

Description of Benefits			You Pay:
Annual Deductible (individual/far	nily)		\$25/\$75
Annual Maximum per member pe	er calendar year		\$1,000
Lifetime Orthodontic Maximum	oer member		N/A
DIAGNOSTIC & PREVENTIVI	E SERVICES		No Charge
 Initial evaluation 	 Cleanings, twice a year 	 Space maintainers to age 19 	
 Periodic evaluations 	 Fluoride treatment to age 19 	 Emergency palliative 	
 Full Series/Panorex X-rays 	 Bitewing X-rays (2/yr) 	treatment	
(1 every 3 yrs)	 Periapical X-ray (as needed) 	 Periodontal maintenance 	
BASIC SERVICES			50%, after deductible
• Fillings	 Endodontics including but 	 Recement Crown 	
 Simple and surgical 	not limited to root canal	 Recement Bridge 	
extractions	therapy	 Repair Bridge 	
Oral surgery	 Repair and relining of dentures 		
MAJOR SERVICES			Not Covered
Periodontics	 Prosthodontics including but 		
• Crowns	not limited to bridgework,		
 Inlays 	partial and full dentures		
 Onlays 	 Post and core 		
ORTHODONTIC SERVICES (child or adult)		Not Covered
Non-surgical dental services	• Records		
related to the supervision,	 Tooth guidance 		
guidance and correction of	Repositioning		
growing or mature teeth	(straightening) of the teeth		
 Examination 			

Accessing Benefits:

Participating Benefits: When a member receives care from one of our participating Dentists, he or she simply presents his or her identification card showing dental coverage. The dentist bills us directly for all covered services. For dental care provided by a Participating Dentist, we will pay the lesser of Dentist's usual charge or maximum allowable amount as determined by Anthem BCBS. The participating Dentist will accept Anthem BCBS's payment in full and make no additional charge to the member, except as otherwise specified in the member's certificate of coverage.

Non-Participating Benefits: Anthem BCBS will pay the maximum allowable amount as determined by Anthem BCBS. The member is responsible for any difference between the amount paid by Anthem BCBS and the fee charged by the Dentist.

Dental claims should be submitted to Anthem BCBS Dental, P.O. Box 659444, San Antonio, TX 78265

PRINCIPAL LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS

Services received from a dental or medical department maintained by an employer, a mutual benefit association, labor union, trustee or other similar person or group; Services for which the member incurs no Dentists' Charge or which are services of a type ordinarily performed by a physician, or charges which would not have been made if insurance was not available; Services with respect to congenital malformations; Services, treatment or supplies furnished by or at the direction of any government, state or political subdivision; Any items not specifically listed in this Policy; Lost or stolen dentures or denture duplication; Gold foil restorations; Temporary services and appliances; such as crown or tooth preparations and temporary fillings, crowns, bridges and dentures; Application of sealants, regardless of reason; Services as determined by the company, that are rendered in a manner contrary to normal dental practice. A complete list of exclusions appears in the Certificate of Coverage.

This is not a legal policy or contract. It is only a general description of your benefits. If there are discrepancies between the Certificate of Coverage and this summary, the Certificate of Coverage shall control.



City of New Britain - Group # 4538 Delta Dental PPOSM plus Premier Supervisors - Buy Up Option 1001 Active / 1002 COBRA

If a Delta Dental PPOSM, Delta Dental Premier®, or Non Participating Dentist is used

Calend	ar Year D	eductible
•	Per Perso	on

\$0

	'	
	Plan Pays:	
Preventive & Diagnostic	100%	
Endodontics	100%	
Simple Restorations	100%	
Simple Extractions	100%	
Repair of Dentures	100%	
Oral Surgery	80%	
Crowns, Inlays and Gold Restorations	50%	
Non Surgical Periodontics (\$500 maximum per person per year)	50%	
Prosthodontics	50%	
Orthodontic Benefits (Adults & Children - \$1,000 lifetime maximum per person)	60%	
Annual Maximum	\$1,750	
Dependent children are covered to age 25		

Delta Dental has two networks available under this plan. The Delta Dental Premier[®] network is the largest of the Delta Dental networks with over 356,000 participating dentist offices nationally (80%+). Delta Dental PPOSM is a smaller, but more discounted network with over 282,000 participating dentist offices nationwide. Delta Dental PPOSM fees are on average 20% less than Delta Dental Premier®.

You may use any fully licensed dentist under this plan, but it is to your advantage to use a network dentist, especially PPO, since they accept the Delta Dental allowance as their maximum charge and cannot bill Delta Dental patients for amounts above this level. Delta Dental PPOSM dentists offer the lowest fees of our networks.

Participating dentists will be paid directly by Delta Dental for covered services. Non-participating dentists will bill you directly, and Delta Dental may make claim payment directly to you. You will maximize benefits and reduce paperwork by using a Delta Dental participating dentist.

If you do not have a dentist, you may obtain a current listing of participating dentists in any area, by calling 1-800 DELTA OK (1-800-335-8265). Provide your zip code to the representative and a directory for that area will be mailed to your home. If you have Internet access, you may also visit our website at **deltadentalnj.com** to locate participating dentists.

At the time of your first appointment, tell the dentist that you are covered under this program and provide your group number and ID number. Your dependents, if covered, should provide the employee's ID number.

Claim questions and other information needs should be directed to Delta Dental's customer service department at 1-800-452-9310.

This overview contains a general description of your dental care program for your use as a convenient reference. Complete details of your program appear in the group contract between your plan sponsor and Delta Dental of New Jersey, Inc. which governs the benefits and operation of your program. In CT, Delta Dental of Connecticut writes dental coverage on an Insured basis and Delta Dental of New Jersey administers self-funded dental benefit programs. The group contract would control if there should be any inconsistency or difference between its provisions and the information in this overview.



City of New Britain — Group # 4538 Delta Dental PPO plus Premier™ 0001 Active / 0002 COBRA

If a Delta Dental PPOSM, Delta Dental Premier®, or Non Participating Dentist is used

Calendar Year Deductible

• Per Person \$0

	<u>Plan Pays:</u>
 Initial Oral Exam – 1/36 mos. 	100%
 Periodic Oral Exams, Cleaning (2 per calendar year per person) 	100%
Space Maintainers (for children to age 19)	100%
 Fluoride Treatment for children to age 19 (2 per calendar year per person) 	100%
• X-rays	100%
Emergency Treatment	100%
Simple Extractions (#7140)	100%
Calendar Year Annual Maximum	\$750
Dependent children are covered to age 25.	

Delta Dental has two networks available under this plan. The Delta Dental Premier[®] network is the largest of the Delta Dental networks with over 351,000 participating dentist offices nationally (80%+). Delta Dental PPOTM is a smaller, but more discounted network with over 266,000 participating dentist offices nationwide. Delta Dental's network discounts average 25% to 35% less.

You may use any fully licensed dentist under this plan, but it is to your advantage to use a network dentist, especially PPO, since they accept the Delta Dental allowance as their maximum charge and cannot bill Delta Dental patients for amounts above this level. Delta Dental PPO dentists offer the lowest fees of our networks.

Participating dentists will be paid directly by Delta Dental for covered services. Non-participating dentists will bill you directly, and Delta Dental may make claim payment directly to you. You will maximize benefits and reduce paperwork by using a Delta Dental participating dentist.

If you do not have a dentist, you may obtain a current listing of participating dentists in any area, by calling 1-800 DELTA OK (1-800-335-8265). Provide your zip code to the representative and a directory for that area will be mailed to your home. If you have Internet access, you may also visit our website at **deltadentalct.com** to locate participating dentists.

At the time of your first appointment, tell the dentist that you are covered under this program and provide your group number and ID number. Your dependents, if covered, should provide the employee's ID number.

Claim questions and other information needs should be directed to Delta Dental's customer service department at 1-800-452-9310.

This overview contains a general description of your dental care program for your use as a convenient reference. Complete details of your program appear in the group contract between your plan sponsor and Delta Dental of New Jersey, Inc. which governs the benefits and operation of your program. In CT, Delta Dental of New Jersey administers self-funded dental benefit programs. The group contract would control if there should be any inconsistency or difference between its provisions and the information in this overview.

5/14/20

ADDENDUM *A* MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Agreement made an entered Into by an between the CITY OF NEW BRITAIN [hereinafter called 'City] and, the NEW BRITAIN POLICE UNION, LOCAL 1165, COUNCIL 1S, AFSCME [hereinafter called 'Union'].

WITNESSETH:

Whereas, the City and the Union have negotiated and agreed upon conditions for pension escalation benefits under the pension plan to be incorporated into the collective bargaining agreement between the City and the Union for the period commencing July 1, 1990, and ending June 30, 1993; and

Whereas, the provisions negotiated and agreed upon by the City and the Union provide that there will be no pension escalation benefits for new employees hired after July 1, 1990; and

Whereas, the provisions negotiated and agreed upon by the City and the Union provided that individuals in the bargaining unit as of July 1, 1990, shall continue to be entitled to pension escalation benefits as provided for under the provisions of the Charter of the City of Now Britain, the Special Acts of the Connecticut General Assembly, to wit: S.A. No.1 442 [1967] and S.A. No. 182 [1969], and the collective bargaining agreement; and

Whereas, the provisions regarding pension escalation benefits negotiated and agreed to by the City and the Union are, or may be construed to be, in conflict with the provisions of the Charter of the City of New Britain and/or the Special Acts of. the Connecticut General Assembly; and

Whereas, Section 7-474[f] of the Connecticut General Statutes provides that where there is a conflict between an agreement reached by a municipal employer and an employee organization on matter appropriate to collective bargaining and any charter, special act, ordinance, rule or regulation adopted by a municipal employer or it agents, or any general statute directly regulating the hours of work of police officers, or any general statute providing for the method or manner of covering or removing employees from coverage under the Connecticut municipal employee' retirement system or under the policemen or firemen survivor's benefit. fund, the terms of such agreement shall prevail;

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the City and the Union do hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement and do agree as follows:

- 1. The Union expressly acknowledges and agrees that the provisions in Section 11.5 through 11-15 of the collective bargaining agreement for the period July 1, 1990, to June 30, 1993, incorporated herein by reference, constitute the pension benefits, including pension escalation benefits, the City is obligated to provide for employees covered under the Agreement between the City of New Britain and New Britain Police Union, Local 1165, Council 15, AFSCME.
- 2. The Union, on its own behalf and on behalf of its members, agrees that it will make no claim for pension benefits on behalf of any member of the Union under any provision of the Charter of the City of New Britain, any Special Act, any ordinance, any rule or regulation adopted by the municipality. or its agents, or any General Statute of the State of Connecticut during the term this collective bargaining agreement shall be in effect.
- 3. The City agrees that pension escalator benefits provided for in Section 11.9[a] of the collective bargaining agreement shall remain in full force and effect for all the covered employees listed on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein and shall be binding on the City with respect to such covered employees and survivors for co long as they live, regardless of whether or not the corresponding provision of the applicable 'collective bargaining agreement remain in effect.
- 4. The City agreed that this Memorandum of Agreement shall be enforceable by the Union or by any of the covered employees listed on Exhibit [A] in any forum of competent jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of Agreement to be signed in their name and behalf on this 10th day of October 1990.

Witnesses:

FOR THE CITY:

SS/ John Byrne

By: SS/ Donald DeFronzo

FOR THE UNION:

SS/ Sandra Loether

By: SS/ William Murdock

AGREEMENT [EXHIBIT A]

This agreement is made by and between the City of New Britain ["City"], Local; 1165, ["Union'] and each and every person employed by the City and included in the Local 1165 unit as of July 1, 1990.

WHEREAS; the City and Local 1165 have negotiated and agreed upon conditions for pension escalation benefits under the pension plan provided in the provisions of the collective bargaining agreement beginning July 1, 1990, and

WHEREAS; there will be no pension escalation benefits for new employee hired after July 1, 1990, and

WHEREAS; the City -and Local 1165 wish to guarantee that the pension escalation benefits will not change for individuals employed in the bargaining unit as of July 1, 1990;

NOW THEREFORE the parties agreed as follows:

- [1] The pension escalation benefits provision of the 1990-1993 collective bargaining agreement between the City and Local 1165, as set forth in Section 11.9[a], are incorporated herein by reference.
- [2] Such pension escalation benefits will remain in full force and effect for all Covered Employees and Survivors listed [attached] and will be binding on the City with respect to such Covered Employees, for as long as they live, regardless of whether or not the corresponding provisions of the applicable collective bargaining agreement remain in effect.
- [3] This Agreement shall be enforceable by any or all of the Covered Employees listed below in any court of competent jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Mayor, having been duly authorized by the Common Council, the Union President, acting on the basic of a ratification vote constituting authorization by the membership of the Union, and the Covered Employees, have all affixed their signatures on the dates indicated below.

CITY OF NEW BRITAIN LOCAL 1165, COUNCIL 15, AFSCME

By SS/ Donald DeFronzo By SS/ William Murdock

Mayor President 10-10-1990 Date 10-10-1990

Date

PENSION ESCALATION-BENEFITS-COVERED PARTICIPANTS ACTIVE EMPLOYEES IN LOCAL 1165 (UPDATED 12/30/15)

CARLOS BURGOS GEORGE KOZIERADZKI

ADDENDUM B SICK LEAVE POOL

- 1. A sick leave pool is hereby established to be used for extreme hardship cases. Membership in the pool shall be on a voluntary basis, however, only members of the pool shall be allowed to apply for the withdrawal of days from the pool.
- 2. All members of the pool shall initially contribute one sick day that shall be deducted from the member's accumulated sick leave. If at any time, the sick leave pool has a balance of less than one hundred and fifty (150) days, each member shall donate one (1) additional day to the sick leave pool.
- 3. Upon exhaustion of accumulated leave, any member of the pool may apply to the Sick Leave Pool Committee, as hereinafter provided, for a withdrawal of days. Application should be made as soon as a member suspects that time will be requested. Sick pool time will not be awarded retroactively. Any additional sick time accumulated while a member is withdrawing from the sick pool shall be exhausted prior to additional days from the pool being used.
- 4. A Sick Leave Pool Committee consisting of the Chief of Police, the Personnel Director and the Union President after polling the Union Executive Board and complying with the results of the majority vote of the Board shall be established. The Committee shall develop procedures for the applying and granting of sick days from the pool. The Committee shall: a) require that an FMLA form be completed by a physician; b) limit to 100 the number of days granted to any employee in any given year; c) consider projected duration of condition involved; and d) consider the applicant's prior record of sick leave use. Additional Committee criteria may be added.
- 5. Application for withdrawal of days shall be made to the Personnel Director who will present the application to the Committee. Applications to the Committee shall be made by letter and accompanied by a completed FMLA form. Applications shall be transmitted, with supporting documents, to the Committee. It is the applicant's responsibility to provide, with the letter of application, the following information to the Committee:
 - A completed FMLA form.
 - b. A complete history of the use of accumulated sick leave time. Include dates absent and the reasons where possible. Date of expiration of accumulated sick time is also required.
 - c. A request for a specific number of days from the Sick Leave Pool.
 - d. Incomplete applications will not be acted upon by the Sick Leave Pool Committee.
 - 6. The granting of any sick leave days from the pool shall be by majority vote of the Committee and such vote shall be final and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.
 - 7. Any days withdrawn from the pool and not used upon the return to work shall be returned to the pool.
 - 8. For all current employees, there will be an open enrollment period in the month of July to allow any employee not in the sick leave pool, the opportunity to join. Any employee who joins in the July open enrollment shall be required to contribute the number of days that equal the amount they would have contributed had they joined the sick pool upon its

creation or the commencement of their employment whichever is applicable. Any employee who joins the pool during the July open enrollment shall not be allowed to borrow from the sick leave pool until one year later.

SIGNED

Erin E. Stewart

Mayor

Jared Barsaleau Acting President

Sinda Guard

Human Resources Director

Kelly Rommel, Staff Representative

AFSCME Counsel 4

Vice-President

Ratified by Membership on April 30, 2020 Approved by Common Council on May 13, 2020